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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Phison Electronics Corp.

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatednbalasheets of Phison Electronics Corp. (the
“Corporation”) and its subsidiaries (collectivetire “Group”) as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive incomé¢hfoithree months ended September 30, 2018 and
2017 and for the nine months ended September 308 20d 2017, the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and cash flows for the nine n®atided September 30, 2018 and 2017, and thedrelate
notes to the consolidated financial statementsuditg a summary of significant accounting policies
Management is responsible for the preparation aid gresentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations @Gowgrthe Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and International Accountingi@&ed 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory @ossion of the Republic of China. Our responsipilit

is to express a conclusion on the consolidateahfiiah statements based on our reviews.

Scope of Review

Except as stated in the following paragraph, wedooted our reviews in accordance with the Statement
of Auditing Standards No. 65 “Review of Financialdrmation Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the Entity”. A review of consolidated financial &ments consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accountindter® and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scbia@ an audit and consequently does not enaltie us
obtain assurance that we would become aware dfigaificant matters that might be identified in an
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit mun

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

As disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated finahctatements, the financial statements of
non-significant subsidiaries included in the coitaikd financial statements were not reviewed. As 0
September 30, 2018 and 2017, the total assetsesé thon-significant subsidiaries were NT$2,375,825
thousand and NT$2,228,385 thousand, respectivelgtesenting 7% and 6%, respectively, of the
consolidated total assets, and the total liakilité these non-significant subsidiaries were NT$B81
thousand and NT$572,950 thousand, respectivelyresepting 6% and 5%, respectively, of the
consolidated total liabilities. For the three mantdnd the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and
2017, the non-significant subsidiaries’ comprehansncome was NT$(29,028) thousand, NT$3,187
thousand, NT$(8,989) thousand and NT$1,995 thoysaspectively, representing (2%), 0%, 0% and
0%, respectively, of the consolidated total compredive income. Furthermore, as stated in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Groinysstments accounted for using the equity mettsod a
of September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to NT$R886thousand and NT$1,588,905 thousand,
respectively, and the comprehensive income of theseciates accounted for using the equity methiod f
the three months and the nine months ended Septe8@b2018 and 2017 was NT$(108,567) thousand,
NT$68,352 thousand, NT$(24,261) thousand and NTEB82thousand, respectively. As stated in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements, thmgestment amounts and the related informatiorhef t
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investees disclosed in the notes to the consotidfiteincial statements were based on unreviewed
financial statements for the same reporting perasithose of the Corporation.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our reviews, except for the adjustmeh#s)yi, as might have been determined to be negessar
had the financial statements of the non-significautbsidiaries and associates accounted for usig th
equity method as described in the preceding pgpadoaen reviewed, nothing has come to our attention
that caused us to believe that the accompanyingotioated financial statements do not give a tme a
fair view of the consolidated financial position thfe Group as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, its
consolidated financial performance for the threentn® ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 and the nine
months ended September 30. 2018 and 2017, andniolidated cash flows for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017 in accordance witRégeilations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and Internationalofrtng Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financipe&iisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Matter of Emphasis

As stated in Note 36 to the accompanying consd@didihancial statements, the Corporation has been
under statutory investigation since August 5, 2fait@Gn alleged violation of the Securities and Eatie
Act, and the investigation was conducted by thev@ai Hsinchu District Prosecutors Office and was
concluded on August 31, 2017. According to the pretease announcement from the Taiwan Hsinchu
District Prosecutors Office on September 1, 20X¥eun the Securities and Exchange Act and related
provisions in the Criminal Code of the RepublicGtiina, the prosecutor charged the chairman of the
Corporation and others culminating in either deferprosecution or dropping the claim for further
prosecution. The Taiwan Hsinchu District ProsecutOffice ex officio sent the ruling to the Taiwan
High Prosecutors Office for reconsideration. ANolvember 18, 2017, in regard to the partial reviooat
and partial dismissal charge by the Taiwan Highs€cators Office against the chairman of the
Corporation and others, the case is under re-imgagin. Our review conclusion is not qualified in
respect of this matter.

The engagement partners on the reviews resultingisnindependent auditors’ review report are Hsin
Wei Tai and Yu-Wei Fan.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

November 13, 2018
Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statememés intended only to present the consolidated
financial position, financial performance and cafbws in accordance with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in the Republic ofn@haind not those of any other jurisdictions. The
standards, procedures and practices to review sucisolidated financial statements are those geheral
accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independentit@sd review report and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been traedlanto English from the original Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. If ¢hisrany conflict between the English version dred t
original Chinese version or any difference in theerpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-leaug
auditors’ review report and consolidated financsghtements shall prevail.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢FVTPL) - current (Notes 7 and 30)
Financial assets at amortized cost - current (Rpte
Debt investments with no active market - currerit@d 10 and 33)
Notes and accounts receivable
Non-related parties (Note 11)
Related parties (Notes 11 and 31)
Other receivables (Note 11)
Current tax assets
Inventories (Note 12)
Prepayments
Other current assets

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢FVTPL) - non-current (Note 7)
Financial assets at fair value through other cofmgmsive income (FVTOCI) -
non-current (Note 8)
Available-for-sale financial assets - non-currésbte 13)
Financial assets measured at cost - non-currerie (N9
Investments accounted for using the equity methie 16)
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17)
Intangible assets (Note 18)
Deferred tax assets
Guarantee deposits paid

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings (Note 19)
Contract liabilities - current
Notes and accounts payable

Non-related parties
Related parties (Note 31)
Other payables (Note 20)
Tax payable
Provisions (Note 22)
Other current liabilities (Note 21)

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Long-term deferred revenue
Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current
Guarantee deposits received

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE CORPORATION (e 24)
Share capital
Common shares
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity

Total equity attributable to owners of the Corpmanat
Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ review report ddtNovember 13, 2018)

Septembe 30, 201¢

December 312017

September 31, 2017

(Audited) (Reviewed)

Amount % Amount %
$ 14,142,389 40 $ 12,735,384 36
1,271,217 4 1,263,008 3
80,534 - 79,713 -
5,413,304 15 5,036,105 14
318,151 1 230,861 1
288,599 1 375,489 1
9,237 - 918 -
7,192,346 21 9,425,395 27
28,720 - 50,289 -
65,190 - 38,927 -
28,809,687 2 29,236,089 2
1 - - - -
1 - - - -
- 434,763 1 449,034 1
- 817,627 2 854,915 2
5 1,709,711 5 1,588,905 5
8 2,822,881 8 2,852,801 8
1 218,130 1 200,022 1
1 310,025 1 295,222 1
- 3,780 - 4,550 -
17 6,316,917 8 6,245,449 8
100 $ 35,126,604 100 $35,481,538 100

$ - - $ 181,560

6 1,086,707 3 1,539,498 4
7 2,560,538 7 3,310,622 9
11 3,736,777 11 3,911,848 11
1 1,092,802 3 1,015,846 3
- 292,081 1 399,253 1
1 194,503 1 267,526 1
26 8,963,408 26 10,626,153 30
- - - 382 -
19,710 - -
- 84,897 - 75,639 -
_ - 274 - 274 -
- 104,881 - 76,295 -
6 9,068,289 6 10,702,448 30
6 1,970,740 6 1,970,740 6
9 6,660,502 19 6,649,763 19
0 2,842,806 8 2,842,806 8
- 25,965 - 25,965 -
14,521,886 41 13,239,767 37
1 17,390,657 49 16,108,538 45
(2) 36,416 - 50,049 -
4 26,058,315 74 24,779,090 70
4 26,058,315 74 24,779,090 70
0 $ 35,126,604 100 $ 35,481,538 100



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

OPERATING REVENUE
(Note 31)
Gross sales
Less: Sales returns and
allowances
Net sales
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenue

OPERATING COSTS (Notes 12,
26 and 31)

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES
(Note 26)
Marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Recognition (reversal) of
expected credit loss

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING INCOME
AND EXPENSES
Other gains and losses
(Note 26)
Share of gains of associates
Other income (Note 26)
Financial costs

Total nonoperating
income and expenses

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME
TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(Notes 4 and 25)

NET PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE
PERIOD, NET OF INCOME
TAX
Items that will not be

reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:

Unrealized loss on
investments in equity
instruments at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Income tax relating to items
that will not be
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Three Months Ended September 30

Nine Months Ended September 30

2018 2017 2018 2017
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
$ 11,118,898 101 $ 11,295,121 101 $ 30,778,319 101 $ 31,454,349 101
123,187 1 154,983 1 248,141 1 369,554 1
10,995,711 100 11,140,138 100 30,530,178 100 31,084,795 100
41,122 - 33,489 - 135,354 - 137,192 -
11,036,833 100 11,173,627 100 30,665,532 100 31,221,987 100
8,192,756 74 8,204,608 73 23,679,571 77 22,191,945 71
2,844,077 26 2,969,019 27 6,985,961 23 9,030,042 29
146,196 1 111,730 1 377,079 1 376,531 1
126,863 1 143,350 1 329,918 1 413,653 1
1,033,083 10 936,509 9 2,470,310 8 2,864,886 9
13 _ - - - 40,399) - - -
1,306,255 12 1,191,589 11 3,136,908 10 3,655,070 11
1,537,822 14 1,777,430 16 3,849,053 3 5,374,972 18
(11,603) - (38,912) - 155,368 1 (422,930) 1)
(108,567) 1) 68,352 - (24,261) - 332,286 1
61,519 1 41,700 - 129,214 - 78,958 -
(256) - (1.,485) - (3,749) - (4,807) -
(58.,907) - 69,655 - 256,572 1 (16,493) -
1,478,915 14 1,847,085 16 4,105,625 14 5,358,479 18
75,837 1 247,343 2 584,048 2 886,188 3
1,403,078 13 1,599,742 14 3,521,577 12 4,472,291 15
(85,659) 1) - - (160,091) 1) - -
- - - - 1,431 - - -
(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Three Months Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or
loss:
Exchange differences on
translating foreign
operations $ (24,715) - $ 7,916 - $ (13,152) - $ 740 -
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale financial

assets - - 904 - - - 76,983 -
Income tax (expense) benefit
relating to items that may
be reclassified
subsequently to profit or
loss 4943 - (1,345) _ - 5056 _ - 199 -
Other comprehensive
(loss) income for the
period, net of income
tax (105.431) _ (1) 7475 - (166,756) __ (1) 77,922 -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD $ 1,297,647 12 $ 1,607,217 4 $ 3,354,821 11 $ 4,550,213 15

NET PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Corporation $ 1,403,078 13 $ 1,599,742 14 $ 3,521,577 11 $ 4,471,973 15

Non-controlling interests - 318

$ 1,403,078 13 $ 1,599,742 4 $ 3,521,577 11 $ 4472291 15

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE
TO:
Owners of the Corporation $ 1,297,647 12 $ 1,607,217 14 $ 3,354,821 11 $ 4,547,987 15
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - 2,226 -

$ 1,297,647 12 $ 1,607,217 4 $ 3,354,821 11 $ 4,550,213 15

EARNINGS PER SHARE; NEW
TAIWAN DOLLARS

(Note 27)
Basic $ 712 $ 8.12 $17.87 $22.69
Diluted $ 7.09 $ 8.05 $17.65 $22.43

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdheolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ review report @dtNovember 13, 2018) (Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Dividends per Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Corporation

Other Equity

Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on
Exchange Unrealized Gain  Financial Assets
Differences on (Loss) on at Fair Value
Retained Earnings Translating Available-for- Through Other
Unappropriated Foreign sale Financial Comprehensive Non-controlling
Ordinary Shares  Capital Surplus Legal Reserve  Special Reserve Earnings Operations Assets Income Total Interests Total Equity

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017 $ 1,970,74 $ 6,652,44 $ 2,356,10 $ 111,35¢ $ 11,928,13 $ (66,81¢) $ 40,85 $ - $ 22,992,82 $ 5,40( $ 22,998,22
Appropriation of the 2016 earnir

Legal reserv - - 486,69¢ - (486,699 - - - - - -

Reversal of special reserve - - - (85,393) 85,393 - - - - - -

Cash dividends - NT$14 per share - - - - (2,759,036) - - - (2,759,036) - (2,759,036)
Actual disposal or acquisition of interests in ddizsies - (2,686) - - - - - - (2,686) - (2,686)
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (7,626) (7,626)
Net profit for the nine months ended Septembe28ay - - - - 4,471,973 - - - 4,471,973 318 4,472,291
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the nine ienhded

September 30, 2017, net of income tax - - - - - (969) 76,983 - 76,014 1,908 77,922
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 201 $ 1,970,74 $ 6,649,76 $ 2,842,80 $ 25,96¢ $ 13,239,76 $ (67,78Y) $ 117,83 $ - $ 24,779,09 $ - $ 24,779,09
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 $ 1,970,740 $ 6,660,502 $ 2,842,806 $ 25,965 $ 14,521,886 $ (67,147) $ 103,563 $ - $ 26,058,315 $ - $ 26,058,315
Effect of retrospective applidon - - - - 463,05: - (103,567 (316,20) 43,28t¢ - 43,28¢
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS ADJUSTED 1,970,740 6,660,502 2,842,806 25,965 14,984,938 (67,147) - (316,201) 26,101,603 - 26,101,603
Appropriation of the 2017 earnings

Legal reserve - - 576,097 - (576,097) - - - - - -

Reversal of special reserve - - - (25,965) 25,965 - - - - - -

Cash dividends - NT$17 per share - - - - (3,350,258) - - - (3,350,258) - (3,350,258)
Changes in capital surplus from investments in@ates and joint

ventures accounted for using the equity method - 14,329 - - - - - - 14,329 - 14,329
Disposal of equity instrument investments at failue through other

comprehensive incor - - - - (28,216 - - 28,21¢ - - -
Net profit for the nine months ended Septembe2808 - - - - 3,521,577 - - - 3,621,577 - 3,521,577
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the nine hienhded

September 30, 2018, net of income tax - - - - 1431 (8,096) - (160,091) (166,756) - (166,756)
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 201 $ 197074 $ 667483 $ 341890 $ - $ 14579,34 $ (75,249 $ - $ (448,079 $ 26,120,49 $ - $ 26,120,49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢nsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Toucheauditors’review report dated November 13, 2018)




PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Nine Months Ended September 30

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortization
Recognition of refund liabilities
Net (gain) loss on foreign currency exchange
Expected credit loss reversed on trade receivables
Interest income
Dividend income
Write-down of inventories
Share of loss (profit) of associates
Financial costs
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of associates
Recognition of provisions
Impairment loss recognized on financial assets
Reversal of bad debts
Other non-cash items
Net changes related to operating assets and fiabili
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo
Notes and accounts receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Contract liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
Other payables
Deferred revenue
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2018 2017
$ 4,105625 $ 5,358,479
160,322 123,327
148,025 117,271
88,043 -
(87,400) 273,528
(40,399) -
(37,277) (28,913)
(32,470) (29,149)
29,076 56,605
24,261 (332,286)
3,749 4,807
(1,113) -
(389) -
- 247,843
- 92,112
- (9,486)
- 1,163
(22,460) 12,300
173,365 (433,866)
(87,572) 14,312
(392,944) (4,259,703)
(110,452) 17,476
(9,475) (10,705)
40,605 -
1,025,640 985,664
3,768 766,046
(8,554) -
- (192,666)
(240,750) 25,178
3,190 2,914
4,734,414 2,802,251
(3,749) (5,119)
(1,265,759) (678,559)
3,464,906 2,118,573
(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Nine Months Ended September 30

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at fair value thrqurgfit or loss $ (2,006,058) (49,675)
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value thnqugfit or loss 1,501,274 2,024
Payment for property, plant and equipment (239,250) (545,706)
Acquisition of associates (177,440) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value thraugker comprehensive
income (102,854) -
Payment for intangible assets (77,817) (95,031)
Proceeds from capital reduction of financial asaeftair value throug
profit or loss 69,855 -
Interest received 37,623 28,138
Dividends received 32,470 29,149
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortinst 13,612 -
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fairevétiiough other
comprehensive income 3,004 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egeigt 1,328 -
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits (987) 6,775
Net cash inflow on disposal of associates 396 -
Purchase of financial assets measured at cost - (234,659)
Increase in debt investments with no active market - (20,984)
Net cash used in investing activities (944.,844) (879,969)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in guarantee deposits (130) (40)
Decrease in short-term borrowings - (399,099)
Decrease in non-controlling interests - (10,312)
Dividends paid (3,350,258) (2,759,036)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,350,388) (3,168,487)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 87,596 (293,064)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (742,730) (2,222,947)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 14,142,389 14,958,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 13,399,659 $ 12,735,384
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ review report ddtNovember 13, 2018) (Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2a.7
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless StateOtherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Phison Electronics Corp. (the “Corporation”) waedrporated on November 8, 2000 under the Company
Act of the Republic of China (“ROC"). The Corporatimainly designs and sells flash memory contreller
and peripheral system applications.

The Corporation’s shares have been traded on tipeiTaxchange (for over-the-counter trading in Taig
since December 6, 2004.

The consolidated financial statements of the Capom and its subsidiaries, hereto forth colledyive
referred to as the “Group”, are presented in thgp@uation’s functional currency, the New Taiwanldol

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approyettie Corporation’s board of directors on Novembe
13, 2018.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDAR DS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the ltaions Governing the Preparation of Financial étep
by Securities Issuers and the International Firsn&eporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRERIC), and Interpretations of IAS (SIC)
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued ietfect by the FSC

Except for the following, whenever applied, thetiali application of the amendments to the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of FinanBlaports by Securities Issuers and the IFRSs
endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC wouldhawe any material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies:

1) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and related anmedts
IFRS 9 supersedes IAS 39 “Financial Instrumentscogeition and Measurement”, with
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial umsénts: Disclosures” and other standards.
IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for classificatm@asurement and impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting. Refer to Note 4 for inforamatelating to the relevant accounting policies.

Classification, measurement and impairment of fomrassets

On the basis of the facts and circumstances thiateeixas at January 1, 2018, the Group has
performed an assessment of the classificationawfgrized financial assets retrospectively and has
elected not to restate prior reporting periods.



The following table shows the original measurentategories and carrying amount under IAS 39
and the new measurement categories and carryingirdmmder IFRS 9 for each class of the
Group'’s financial assets as at January 1, 2018.

Measurement Category Carrying Amount
Financial Assets IAS 39 IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 9 Remark
Cash and cash Loans and receivables = Amortized cost $ 14,142,389 $ 14,142,389 @)
equivalents
Equity securities Available for sale Mandatorily at FVTPL 778,478 784,451 (b)
Available for sale FVTOCI - equity instruments 473,912 511,227 (b)
Held for trading Mandatorily at FVTPL 67,095 67,095 -
Beneficiary certificates - Held for trading Mandatorily at FVTPL 1,150,400 1,150,400 (c)
open-end funds
Convertible bonds Designated as at FVTPL Mandatorily at FVTPL 53,722 53,722 (d)
Financial assets pledged Loans and receivables  Amortized cost 80,534 80,534 (@)
as collateral
Notes receivable, trade Loans and receivables  Amortized cost 6,020,054 6,020,054 (@)
receivables and other
receivables
Guarantee deposits paid Loans and receivables ~ Amortized cost 3,780 3,780 (@)
IAS 39 IFRS 9 Retained
Carrying Carrying Earnings Other Equity
Amount as of . Amount as of Effect on Effect on
January 1, Red?ss'f" Remeasure- January 1, January 1, January 1,
Financial Assets 2018 cations ments 2018 2018 2018 Remark
FVTPL $ 1,271,217 $ - $ - $ 1,271,217 $ - $
Add: Reclassification from
available-for-sale
(IAS 39)
Required reclassification - 778,478 5,973 784,451 109,536 (103,563) (b)
1,271,217 778,478 5,973 2,055,668 109,536 (103,563)
FVTOCI - - - - - -
Add: Reclassification from - 473,912 37,315 511,227 353,516 (316,201) (b)
available-for-sale
(IAS 39)
473,912 37,315 511,227 353,516 (316,201)
$ 1271217 $ 1252390 $ 43288 $ 2566895 $ 463,052 $ (419,764)
a) Cash and cash equivalents, financial assetggdeds collateral, notes receivable, accounts

b)

receivable, other receivables and guarantee depued that were previously classified as loans
and receivables under IAS 39 were classified asmairtized cost with an assessment of
expected credit losses under IFRS 9.

The Group elected to classify all of its investits in equity securities previously classified as
available-for-sale under IAS 39 as at FVTPL unddRS$ 9. As a result, the related other equity
- unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale ficial assets of $103,563 thousand was
reclassified to retained earnings.

Investments in unlisted shares previously measatredst under IAS 39 have been classified at
FVTPL and designated as at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 waede remeasured at fair value.
Consequently, an increase of $5,973 thousand wagmeed in both financial assets at FVTPL
and retained earnings. An increase of $37,315 #raligvas recognized in both financial assets
at FVTOCI and other equity - unrealized gain (loms)financial assets at FVTOCI on January
1, 2018.

The Group recognized under IAS 39 impairment losse@rtain investments in equity securities
previously measured at cost and the loss was adateduin retained earnings. Since those
investments were designated as at FVTOCI under IBR®d no impairment assessment is
required, an adjustment was made that resulteddecacase of $353,516 thousand in other
equity - unrealized gain (loss) on financial assEt$VTOCI and an increase of $353,516
thousand in retained earnings on January 1, 2018.

-10 -



2)

c) Beneficiary certificates - open-end funds presiy classified as held-for-trading under IAS 39
were classified mandatorily as at FVTPL under IFR®ecause the contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest anglincipal outstanding and they are not equity
instruments.

d) Convertible bonds previously classified as aff P/ under IAS 39 were classified mandatorily
as at FVTPL under IFRS 9, because the contractasth dows are not solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding they are not equity instruments.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customears related amendments

IFRS 15 establishes principles for recognizing nexaethat apply to all contracts with customers
and supersedes IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “ConstonctiContracts” and a number of
revenue-related interpretations. Refer to Noter4dtated accounting policies.

The Group elected only to retrospectively apply $E5 to contracts that were not complete on
January 1, 2018 and not restate prior reportingogser The cumulative effect of the initial
application of this standard was retrospectivebogmized at the date of initial application.

The anticipated impact on assets, liabilities aqitg when retrospectively applying IFRS 15 as of
January 1, 2018 is detailed below:

Carrying

Amount as of

December 31,  Adjustments Carrying

2017 (IAS 18 Arising from Amount as of

and Related Initial January 1, 201¢

Explanations) Application (IFRS 15)
Provisions - current $ 292,081 $ (292,081) $ -
Other current liabilities 194,503 292,081 486,584
Total effect on liabilities $ -

Prior to the application of IFRS 15, estimated saketurns and allowances were recognized in
provisions of sales returns and allowances. Afber dpplication of IFRS 15, it is recognized in
refund liabilities (other current liabilities).

The impact of if the Corporation were to continggplging IAS 18 in 2018 instead of IFRS 15 is
shown below.

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity for therent period

September 30,
2018
Increase in provisions - current $ 209,108
Decrease in other current liabilities (209,108)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities $ -
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b. Amendments to the Regulations Governing the @&&atjon of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for applicatentirsg from 2019

Effective Date

New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with tilega January 1, 2019 (Note 2)
Compensation”
IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment o January 1, 2019 (Note 3)
Settlement”
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term Interests in Asate$ and Joint January 1, 2019
Ventures”
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&8 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The FSC permits the election for early dgidopof the amendments starting from 2018.

Note 3: The Group shall apply these amendmentdaio @mendments, curtailments or settlements
occurring on or after January 1, 2019.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 sets out the accounting standards for dethse will supersede IAS 17 and a number of rdlate
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

Upon initial application of IFRS 16, the Group walect to apply the guidance of IFRS 16, in
determining whether contracts are, or containaadeonly to contracts entered into (or changedjron
after January 1, 2019. Contracts identified asaioimg a lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will not be
reassessed and will be accounted for in accordaitiee¢he transitional provisions under IFRS 16.

The Group as lessee

Upon initial application of IFRS 16, the Group shalcognize right-of-use assets and lease liadsliti
for all leases on the consolidated balance shespe for low-value and short-term leases. On the
consolidated statements of comprehensive inconeeGtioup should present the depreciation expense
charged on right-of-use assets separately fronntieeest expense accrued on lease liabilitiesyeste

is computed using the effective interest method.tl@n consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
payments for the principal portion of lease liahik are classified within financing activities;sba
payments for the interest portion are classifiethiwioperating activities. Prior to the applicatioh
IFRS 16, payments under operating lease contraeteeaognized as expenses on a straight-line basis.
Cash flows for operating leases are classifiediwitiperating activities on the consolidated statesne

of cash flows.

The Group anticipates applying IFRS 16 retrospebtiwith the cumulative effect of the initial

application of this standard recognized on Januar019. Comparative information will not be
restated.

-12 -



Lease liabilities will be recognized on Januar2@19 for leases currently classified as operagagés
under IAS 17. Lease liabilities will be measuredhat present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrovabgon January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assetdwill
measured at their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 beeh applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the aforementioned incrementaoladng rate. The Group will apply IAS 36 to all
right-of-use assets.

The Group expects to apply the following practegbedients:

1) The Group will apply a single discount rate tgpartfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics to measure lease liabilities.

2) The Group will account for those leases for \whitce lease term ends on or before December 31,
2019 as short-term leases.

3) The Group will exclude initial direct costs fraime measurement of right-of-use assets on January
1, 2019.

4) The Group will use hindsight, such as in detaing lease terms, to measure lease liabilities.

The Group as lessor

The Group will not make any adjustments for ledaeshich it is a lessor and will account for those
leases with the application of IFRS 16 startingrfrdanuary 1, 2019.

Except for the above impacts, as of the date tmsalmlated financial statements were authorized for
issue, the Group continues assessing other posgsiipiacts that application of the aforementioned
amendments and the related amendments to the Regsl&overning the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers will have on the @ofinancial position and financial performancealan
will disclose these other impacts when the asseassisieompleted.

New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed aneiksuo effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020 (Note 2)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contrdsudf Assets To be determined by IASB
between An Investor and Its Associate or Joint Wit

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Matfi January 1, 2020 (Note 3)

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&8 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The Group shall apply these amendmentsistnbss combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first ameporting period beginning on or after
January 1, 2020 and to asset acquisitions that @ccar after the beginning of that period.

Note 3: The Group shall apply these amendmentsppotisely for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

As of the date the consolidated financial statememere authorized for issue, the Group is
continuously assessing the possible impact thatigpdication of other standards and interpretations
will have on the Group’s financial position anddntial performance and will disclose the relevant
impact when the assessment is completed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These interim consolidated financial statementsehagen prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports legusities Issuers and IAS 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” as endorsed and issued into effect ByRBC. Disclosure information included in thesernint
consolidated financial statements is less thamigeosure information required in a complete $etrmual
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have begmaped on the historical cost basis, except fomionel
instruments which are measured at fair values,n@hdiefined benefit liabilities which are measua¢dhe
present value of the defined benefit obligatiors le fair value of plan assets.

The fair value measurements, which are groupedliet@ls 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fai
value measurement inputs are observable and basedeosignificance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, are described asvistlo

a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustedktive markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quotedegrimcluded within Level 1 that are observabledor
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priyes indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for aetasr liability.
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporhee financial statements of the Corporation and the
entities controlled by the Corporation (i.e. itdsidiaries, including structured entities). Wherassary,
adjustments are made to the financial statemenssilugidiaries to bring their accounting policiemiline

with those used by the Corporation. All intra-grotrpnsactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full upon consolidation. Total compeasive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Corporation and to the non-contrgllinterests even if this results in the non-colitrgl
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in gigréds that do not result in the Group losing oaint
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equitysactions. The carrying amounts of the Groupbré@sts
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted eftect the changes in their relative interests he t
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amounvhbigh the non-controlling interests are adjusted e
fair value of the consideration paid or receivedeisognized directly in equity and attributed te tiwners
of the Corporation.

See Note 15 and Tables 5 and 6 following the Nate€onsolidated Financial Statements for detailed
information on subsidiaries (including the percgetaof ownership and main businesses).

Other Significant Accounting Policies
Except for the following, the accounting policieggpled in these consolidated financial statememngs a
consistent with those applied in the consolidatedricial statements for the year ended December 31,

2017. For the summary of other significant accauntpolicies, refer to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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a. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are griped when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities areiatliy measured at fair value. Transaction costs &na
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuefinancial assets and financial liabilities (othan
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTRire added to or deducted from the fair valuehef t
financial assets or financial liabilities, as agprate, on initial recognition. Transaction costectly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assetsfinancial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

1) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financiaktssire recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

a) Measurement category

2

18

Financial assets are classified into the followdategories: Financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at amortized cost and investments in eqgitijuments at FVTOCI.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL whein su financial asset is mandatorily
classified or designated as at FVTPL. Financiattzsmandatorily classified as at FVTPL
include investments in equity instruments which rmwe designated as at FVTOCI and debt
instruments that do not meet the amortized cowr@ior the FVTOCI criteria.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measuiriadt value, with any gains or losses

arising on remeasurement recognized in profit es.ld’he net gain or loss recognized in

profit or loss does not incorporate any dividendmterest earned on such a financial asset.
Fair value is determined in the manner describddiate 30.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditiares subsequently measured at amortized
cost:

i) The financial asset is held within a businesslaiavhose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flamst

i) The contractual terms of the financial assefegiise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and inteossthe principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assgtamortized cost, including cash and cash
equivalents and notes and trade receivables attiaegbrcost, are measured at amortized
cost, which equals to gross carrying amount detethusing the effective interest method
less any impairment loss. Exchange differencesem@gnized in profit or loss.
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Interest income is calculated by applying the ¢ifecinterest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for:

i) Purchased or originated credit-impaired finaheissets, for which interest income is
calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effexiivterest rate to the amortized cost of
such a financial asset; and

i) Financial assets that have subsequently becoredit-impaired, for which interest
income is calculated by applying the effective liegt rate to the amortized cost of such
a financial asset.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with origmaturities within 3 months from the
date of acquisition, which are highly liquid, rdgdionvertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changeglue. These cash equivalents are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commmtme

ii. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an ioeable election to designate investments
in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designatiof-eTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contimgeconsideration recognized by an acquirer
in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI aresggjiently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair vaggognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in other equity. The cunwalaain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity invesiits; instead, they will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instrusemé recognized in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is dsthbd, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of thestment.

2017

Financial assets are classified into the followiegegories: Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale finari@asets and loans and receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profitass

Financial assets are classified as at fair valueutsh profit or loss when such financial
assets are either held for trading or designated fsr value through profit or loss.

A financial asset may be designated as at fairevalwough profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

i) Such designation eliminates or significantly ueds a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

ii) The financial asset forms part of a group ofaficial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and has performance evaluate a fair value basis in
accordance with the Corporation’s documented riakagement or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is providediingdly on that basis; or

iii) The contract contains one or more embeddedvatves so that the entire hybrid
(combined) contract can be designated as at fhievarough profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit aslare stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized int prolidss. The net gain or loss recognized
in profit or loss does not incorporate any divideiod interest earned on the financial asset.
Fair value is determined in the manner describedoie 30.

ii. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deixt that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as loarr@ceivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profitass.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measuredamt value. Changes in the carrying
amounts of available-for-sale monetary financiatess (relating to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest income calculaged the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investmeri® recognized in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-foe-delancial assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income and will be reclassified wfipor loss when such investments are
disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumests recognized in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is estaldish

Available-for-sale equity investments that do navér a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably mmemsand derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquotadtydnvestments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment loss at the endawfhereporting period and presented in a
separate line item as financial assets measuredsat If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of the financial assets can be reliably messithe financial assets are remeasured at
fair value. The difference between the carrying amiaand the fair value is recognized in
other comprehensive income on financial assets. ikfpairment losses are recognized in
profit and loss.

iii. Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables (including cash and caslvalguits, debt investments with no active
market, notes receivable and trade receivablesymma@sured using the effective interest
method at amortized cost less any impairment, éxiogpshort-term receivables when the
effect of discounting is immaterial.
Cash equivalents include time deposits with origmaturities within 3 months from the
date of acquisition, which are highly liquid, rdgdionvertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changeglue. These cash equivalents are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commmtme

b) Impairment of financial assets
2018

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expectedit losses on financial assets at
amortized cost (including trade receivables) ateh@ of each reporting period.
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The loss allowance for accounts receivable is nredsat an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. For other financial assets, whertithéit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognizgdan amount equal to the expected credit
losses resulting from possible default events effiiancial instruments within 12 months after

the reporting date. If, on the other hand, theelleen a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognizgdan amount equal to the expected credit
losses resulting from possible default events dweexpected life of the financial instruments.

Expected credit losses are the weighted averagiit éneses with the probability of default as
the weight. The portion of expected credit los$ed is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible withid months after the reporting date are
12-month expected credit losses. Lifetime expectedit losses are the expected credit losses
that arise if debtors default on their obligatiaxtssome time during the life of a financial
instrument.

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or logsrdifit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carryimgoant through a loss allowance account.
Except for investments in debt instruments thatraeasured at FVTOCI, for which the loss
allowance is recognized in other comprehensive nmcand does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial asset.

2017

Financial assets, other than those at fair valtmutfh profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting periéidancial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence, as a result ef@mmore events that occurred after the initial

recognition of the financial assets, that the estia future cash flows of the investment have

been affected.

For financial assets at amortized cost, such a traceivables, such assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they wassessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolioreteivables could include the Group’s past
experience with collecting payments, an increas¢hé number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, as wslloaservable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaultsegseivables.

For a financial asset at amortized cost, the amo@ithe impairment loss recognized is the
difference between such an asset’s carrying amemohthe present value of its estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset'ginai effective interest rate.

For financial assets at amortized cost, if, in lseguent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be relatediva@ijeto an event occurring after the

impairment was recognized, the previously recoghizapairment loss is reversed through

profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amtoof the investment (at the date on which the
impairment is reversed) does not exceed what thertemad cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a sigaiit or prolonged decline in the fair value of
a security below its cost is considered to be dbje@vidence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is @ersid to be impaired, cumulative gains or

losses previously recognized in other compreherias@me are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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In respect of available-for-sale equity securitisgairment loss previously recognized in profit
or loss is not reversed through profit or loss. Angrease in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognized in other comprehengicome. In respect of available-for-sale
debt securities, impairment loss is subsequentlgreed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectivedlated to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at cost, the amdutiteoimpairment loss is measured as the
difference between such an asset’s carrying amanohthe present value of its estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rateetafrn for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subseqpenibds

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduogdhe impairment loss directly for all
financial assets, with the exception of trade nedgles, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When tradeivables are considered uncollectible,
they are written off against the allowance accoBaobsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance aotoChanges in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in profit or kesept for uncollectible trade receivables that
are written off against the allowance account.

c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only whencontractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or when it transfers theniong asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Before 2018, on derecognition of a financial assets entirety, the difference between the

asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the coresider received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognizeattier comprehensive income is recognized
in profit or loss. From 2018, on derecognition direncial asset at amortized cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amanodtthe sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. @mecognition of an investment in a debt

instrument at FVTOCI, the difference between theetis carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cinaalgain or loss that had been recognized
in other comprehensive income is recognized inippoofloss. However, on derecognition of an

investment in an equity instrument at FVTOCI, thifedence between the asset's carrying

amount and the sum of the consideration receiveldereivable is recognized in profit or loss,

and the cumulative gain or loss that had been rezed in other comprehensive income is

transferred directly to retained earnings, with@atycling through profit or loss.

2) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by a group entity ar@gaized at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

3) Financial liabilities
a) Recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, the transaction costs ofafiicial assets that are neither held for trading
nor designated as at FVTPL (including short-termrdwing, trade and notes payables, other
payables and guarantee deposits received) ardlgiagiributable to the acquisition or issue of

financial assets and financial liabilities are atlde or deducted from the fair value of the

financial assets or financial liabilities. Subseagugaluation is measured at amortized cost
determined by the effective interest method.
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b) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The difference between the carrying amount of tharfcial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assessterred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss.

b. Revenue recognition
2018

The Group identifies contracts with the customait®cates the transaction price to the performance
obligations and recognizes revenue when performahligations are satisfied.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods comes from thedfadllesh memory controllers, peripheral systems
and other applications. Sales of the aforementiqgextis are recognized as revenue when the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific locatiothe goods are shipped because it is the time wheen
customer has full discretion over the manner dfithistion and price to sell the goods, has the arim
responsibility for sales to future customers, andrb the risks of obsolescence. Trade receivabdes a
recognized concurrently. When the customer intigdurchases the goods, the transaction price
received is recognized as a contract liability lthe goods have been delivered to the customer.

The Group does not recognize sales revenue on ialatelelivered to subcontractors because this
delivery does not involve a transfer of risks aealards of the materials’ ownership.

2017

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cerdidn received or receivable. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer returns, rebates and otfméas allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized whehnesfollowing conditions are satisfied:
1) The Group has transferred to the buyer the fagmit risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

2) The Group retains neither continuing managéemialvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

3) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
4) ltis probable that the economic benefits asgediwith the transaction will flow to the Groumda
5) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respétte transaction can be measured reliably.

The Group does not recognize sales revenue on ialatelelivered to subcontractors because this
delivery does not involve a transfer of risks aealards of the materials’ ownership.

Specifically, sales of goods are recognized wheodgoare delivered and titles have passed to the
buyer.
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c. Retirement benefits

Pension cost for an interim period is calculated eolyear-to-date basis by using the actuarially
determined pension cost rate from the end of tha financial year, adjusted for significant market

fluctuations since that time and for significanaplamendments, settlements, or other significant
one-off events.

d. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tagntly payable and deferred tax. Interim period
income taxes are assessed on an annual basislanidtes by applying to an interim period’s pre-tax
income the tax rate that would be applicable tceetg total annual earnings. The effect of a chamge
tax rate resulting from a change in tax law is ggiped consistent with the accounting for the
transaction itself which gives rise to the tax @mgence and is recognized in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity in falthe period in which the change in tax rate oscur

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES O F ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting p@ssimanagement is required to make judgments, asism
and assumptions about the carrying amount of aagetdiabilities that are not readily apparent frother
sources. The estimates and associated assumptébhased on historical experience and other fatiats
are considered relevant. Actual results may dffiam these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are rediesn an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whichetfteamates are revised if the revisions affect dahbt
period or in the period of the revisions and futpegiods if the revisions affect both current aotufe
periods.

a. Estimated impairment of financial assets - 2018

The provision for impairment of trade receivabkebased on assumptions about the risk of defandts a
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment imnmakese assumptions and in selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, which are based len Group’s historical experience, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimateshat end of each reporting period. For details ef th
key assumptions and inputs used, see Note 11. Wheractual future cash inflows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

b. Estimated impairment of trade receivables - 2017

When there is objective evidence of impairment losstrade receivables, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of the future caskvélaf such receivables. The amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between suelssat's carrying amount and the present valuesof it
estimated future cash flows (excluding future drémBses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective intereater Where the actual future cash flows are lean th
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

c. Inventory write-downs
The net realizable value of inventories is thenested selling price in the ordinary course of bess
less the estimated costs of completion and disp@sal estimation of net realizable value is based o

current market conditions and historical experiewith product sales of a similar nature. Changes in
market conditions may have a material impact orettlignation of the net realizable value.
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d. Estimated refund liabilities - under provisidossales returns and allowances in 2017

Provisions for sales returns and allowances reféhé Group’s best estimate of the future outfldw o
the economic resources that will be required fa Hettlement of the Group’s obligations. Such
estimate is made on the basis of historical expegemanagement’s judgment and any known factors
that would significantly affect sales returns afidveances. Changes in market conditions may have a
material impact on the estimation of provisions.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Cash on hand $ 112 $ 102 % 99
Checking accounts and demand deposits 8,633,336 9,638,350 8,630,007
Cash equivalents
Time deposits with original maturities of less
than 3 months 4,766,211 4,503,937 4,105,278

$ 13,399,659 $ 14,142,389 $ 12,735,384

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PRO FIT OR LOSS

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Non-derivative financial assets - current
Financial assets at FVTPL
Convertible bonds $ - $ 53,722 $ 49,675
Financial assets held for trading
Beneficiary certificates - open-end funds - 1,150,400 1,148,581
Domestic quoted shares - 67,095 64,752

- 1,217,495 1,213,333

Financial assets mandatorily at FVTPL

Beneficiary certificates - open-end funds 1,676,945 - -
Domestic quoted shares 441,807 - -
2,118,752 - -

$ 2,118,752 $ 1,271,217 $ 1,263,008

Non-derivative financial assets - non-current

Financial assets mandatorily at FVTPL

Private equity funds $ 47,347 $ - $ -
Domestic unlisted shares 255,041 - -
Overseas unlisted shares 92,032 - -

$ 394,420 $ - $ -
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER CO MPREHENSIVE INCOME -

10.

NON-CURRENT - 2018
Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTOCI

September 30,
2018

Domestic investments - unlisted shares $ 161,628
Overseas investments - unlisted shares 289,358

$ 450,986

These investments in equity instruments are nal Fal trading. Instead, they are held for medium to
long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the nganaent elected to designate these investmentsiityeq
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that neiziig short-term fluctuations in these investmefatis
value in profit or loss would not be consistenthwithe Group’s strategy of holding these investmémts
long-term purposes. These investments in equityjuments were classified as available-for-sale ubg

39. Refer to Notes 3 and 14 for information relgitin their reclassification and comparative infotioa
for 2017.

In 2018, the Group paid $102,854 thousand to aeqummon shares of domestic and foreign unlisted
entities for medium- to long-term strategic purmysbe management designated these investments as a
FVTOCI.

In 2018, some of the Group’s foreign unlisted inments completed liquidation processes. The related
financial assets at FVTOCI and other equity - ulized gain (loss) on financial assets at FVTOCI of
$28,216 thousand were transferred to retainedregsni

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST - CURRENT - 2018

September 30,
2018

Certificates of deposit $ 56,922
Time deposits with original maturity of more tham®nths 10,000

$ 66,922

The interest rates for time deposits with origimaiturity of more than 3 months were from 0.13%tabea
end of the reporting period.

See Note 33 for more information on certificate$imdincial assets at amortized cost.

DEBT INVESTMENTS WITH NO ACTIVE MARKET - CURREN T - 2017

December 31, September 30,

2017 2017
Certificates of deposit $ 80,534 $ 79,713

See Note 33 for more information on certificatesleposit.
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11. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER R ECEIVABLES

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2017 2017
Notes receivable

Notes receivable - operating $ - $ 4 $ 0 -

Accounts receivable

At amortized cost
Gross carrying amount - non-related parties $ 5,456,746 $ 5,598,693 $ 5,189,052

Gross carrying amount - related parties 254,651 318,151 230,861
5,711,397 5,916,844 5,419,913

Less: Loss allowance (143,256) (185,393) (152,947)
Notes and accounts receivable, net $ 5,568,141 $ 5,731,451 $ 5,266,966

Other receivables

Income tax refund receivable $ 281,665 $ 116,866 $ 260,734
Factored accounts receivable 72,959 147,526 90,485
Others 21,958 24,207 24,270
Other receivables $ 376,582 $ 288,599 $ 375,489

Accounts Receivable - Trade

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018

The average credit period of sales of goods wa® 30 days. The Group adopted a policy of onlyidgal
with entities that are rated the equivalent of gta@ent grade or higher and obtaining sufficientatetal,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating thk af financial loss from defaults. Credit rating
information is obtained from independent ratingramyes where available or, if not available, the @ro
uses other publicly available financial informationits own trading records to rate itS major costcs.
The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings ofcdanterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spagamhgst approved counterparties. Credit exposure i
controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewadd approved by the risk management committee
annually.

In order to minimize credit risk, the managementhsd Corporation has delegated staff responsibie fo
determining credit limits, credit approvals andestmonitoring procedures to ensure that follow-apoa

is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition Gheup reviews the recoverable amount of each iddal
trade debt at the end of the reporting period teusn that an adequate allowance is made for pessibl
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the managerbelieves the Group’s credit risk is significgntl
reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to alfeyvfor expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of a lifetime expected crkdises allowance for all trade receivables. Theeeted
credit losses on trade receivables are estimatid) @ allowance matrix by reference to past défaul
experience with the respective debtors and an sisaty each debtor’s current financial positionuated

for general economic conditions of the industryvimich the debtors operate and an assessment ofHmoth
current as well as the forecasted direction of enta conditions at the reporting date. As the Giaup
historical credit losses experience does not shgmifeantly different loss patterns for differectistomer
segments, the loss allowance, which is based onp#st due status of receivables, is not further
distinguished according to different segments ef@noup’s customer base.

-24 -



The Group writes off a trade receivable when theiaformation indicating that the debtor is expeading
severe financial difficulty and there is no readigtrospect of recovery, e.g. the earlier of eitwben the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or whentriéide receivables are over two years past due. Fo
trade receivables that have been written off, theu@ continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivables which are dugerd/recoveries are made, these are recognizedfih p
or loss.

The following table details the loss allowance @de receivables - non-related parties based on the
Group’s allowance matrix.

September 30, 2018

Less than 2
Not Past Due Months 2to3Months 3to4 Months 4to5 Months Over 5 Months Total
Expected credit losses rate 1.57% 13.64% 19.39% 26.79% 61.45% 100%
Gross carrying amount $ 5,077,962 $ 308,069 $ 30,410 $ 23,068 $ 11,550 $ 5,687 $ 5,456,746
Loss allowance (lifetime expected
credit losses) (81,285) (37,645) (5.916) (6,068) (6.785) (5.557) (143,256)
Amortized cost $ 4,996,677 $ 270,424 $ 24,494 $ 17,000 $ 4,765 $ 130 $ 5,313,490

The movements of the loss allowance of trade rabéds were as follows:

2018

Balance at January 1, 2018 per IAS 39 $ 185,393
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 -

Balance at January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 185,393
Less: Provision (Reversal) of loss allowance (40,399)
Less: Amounts written off (1,647)
Foreign exchange gains and losses (91)
Balance at September 30, 2018 $ 143,256

The factored accounts receivable were as follows:

(In Thousands)

Factored Collected Discount Factored
Factor Amount Amount Prepayments  Rate (%) Limit

For the nine months ended

September 30, 2018
HSBC Bank US$ 35,037 US$ 31,957 $ - - US$ 12,200
For the nine months ended

September 30, 2017
HSBC Bank US$ 29,757 US$ 26,320 - - US$ 12,350

Note: Recorded under other receivables.
The limit above was used on a revolving basis.

The factor was HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited. Thisesals without recourse.
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September 30, 2017

The Group applied the same credit policy in 2018 2@817. For some trade receivables balances that we
past due at the end of the reporting period, theu@did not recognize an allowance for impairmessl|
because there was no significant change in crediity and the amounts were still considered reraive.
The Group did not hold any collateral or other @redhancements for these balances.

The aging of receivables was as follows:

December 31, September 30,

2017 2017
Not past due $ 5,457,310 $ 5,120,860
1-60 days 406,230 242,779
61-90 days 429 85
91-120 days 38,566 41,428
More than 120 days 14,309 14,761

$ 5,916,844 $ 5,419,913
The above aging schedule was based on the numbeysfpast the end of the credit term.
The Group had no receivables that were past duedbuitnpaired.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful tramteivables were as follows:

Individually Collectively
Assessed for Assessed for
Impairment Impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 161,680 $ 161,680
Add: Impairment losses reversed - (9,486) (9,486)
Exchange differences - 753 753
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ - $ 152,947 $ 152,947

The Group individually recognized impairment lossestrade receivables of $0 as of both December 31,
2017 and September 30, 2017. These amounts maenigiped to customers that were in the process of
liquidation or experiencing severe financial diffittes. The Group had no collateral for these rexdales.

12. INVENTORIES

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Raw materials $ 4,289,187 $ 3,941,530 $ 5,439,821
Work-in-process 2,417,901 1,295,526 2,172,004
Semifinished products 813,977 1,883,751 1,725,228
Finished goods 34,019 71,539 88,342
Merchandise 1,166 - -

$ 7,556,250 $ 7,192,346 $ 9,425,395

-26 -



13.

14.

15.

The costs of inventories recognized as cost of gamld for the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017 were $8,192,756 thou$8r204,608 thousand, $23,679,571 thousand and
$22,191,945 thousand, respectively.

The costs of goods sold for the three months amel mionths ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 imclude
write-down of inventories for $53,272 thousand 862, thousand, $29,076 thousand and $56,605 thousand
respectively.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRE NT - 2017
December 31, September 30,
2017 2017
Private equity
Domestic listed, common shares $ 434,763 $ 449,034

The Corporation obtained shares issued by Apacennidogy Inc. in a private placement. Under Article
43-8 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the teansffthese shares is restricted.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT COST - NON-CURRENT - 2017
December 31, September 30,
2017 2017
Domestic unlisted common shares $ 362,838 $ 377,524
Overseas unlisted common shares 394,789 417,391
Domestic private equity funds 60,000 60,000

$ 817,627 $ 854,915

Classified according to categories

Available-for-sale $ 817,627 $ 854,915
Management believed that the above unlisted eduigstments held by the Group had fair values which

could not be reliably measured because the rangeeadonable fair value estimates was significant.
Therefore, they were measured at cost less impatratehe end of the reporting period.

SUBSIDIARIES

a. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated firgrstatements

The main structure of consolidated financial st&ets is as follows:

Investment Percentage
Main Businesses and September 30, December 31, September 30,

Investor Investee Products 2018 2017 2017 Note
Phison Electronics Lian Xu Dong Investment  Investment 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Corp. Corporation
Phison Electronics Japan  Sales and service office 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Corp.
Emtops Electronics Corp.  Sales of flash memory 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1

controllers and peripheral
system applications
products

(Continued)
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Investment Percentage

Main Businesses and September 30, December 31, September 30,
Investor Investee Products 2018 2017 2017 Note
Phisontech Electronics Design, production and sale 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. of flash memory
controllers and peripheral
system applications
Global Flash Limited Investment and trade 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Power Flash (Samoa) Investment and trade 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited
Everspeed Technology Trade of electronic 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited components
Regis Investment (Samoa) Investment 100.00 Remarks 1
Limited and 2
Global Flash Limited Phisontech (Shenzhen) Design, R&D, import and 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited export of storage devices
and electronics
Core Storage Electronic Investment and trade 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
(Samoa) Limited
Core Storage Electronic Hefei Core Storage Design, R&D, production 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
(Samoa) Limited Electronic Limited and sale of integrated
circuits, systems and
electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services.
Hefei Core Storage Hefei Yichao Electronics Design, R&D and sale of 100.00 Remarks 1
Electronic Limited Technology Ltd. electronic products and and 3
technical support service
and rendering of related
services.
Phisontech Electronics Phisontech Electronics Design of ASIC and R&D, 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.  Taiwan Corp. manufacture, and sale of
ASIC for IP and technical
support service
Lian Xu Dong Ostek Corporation Manufacture and trade of 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Investment electronic components
Corporation
Power Flash (Samoa) Power Flash (HK) Limited  Sale of electronic products 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited
Everspeed Technology Memoryexchange Production and sale of flash 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited Corporation memory related products
Cloud Solution Global Trade of electronic 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
Limited components
Fast Choice Global Limited Trade of electronic 100.00 100.00 100.00 Remark 1
components
Regis Investment RealYou Investment Limited Investment 100.00 Remarks 1
(Samoa) Limited and 2
RealYou Investment Hefei Ruhan Electronic Design, R&D and sale of 100.00 Remarks 1
Limited Technology Limited electronic products and and 2
technical support service
and rendering of related
services.
(Concluded)

Remark 1: The financial statements of the non-figanit subsidiaries indicated above for the periods
indicated above have not been reviewed.

Remark 2: For the nine months ended September B®, Regis Investment (Samoa) Limited was
incorporated in Samoa for operational purposes, ideinvestment entity, RealYou
Investment Limited, was incorporated in Hong Kotige reinvestment entity of RealYou
Investment Limited, Hefei Ruhan Electronic Techmgyld_imited, was incorporated in
Hefei.

Remark 3: For the nine months ended September BB, Zhe reinvestment entity of Hefei Core
Storage Electronic Limited, Hefei Yichao Electranitechnology Ltd., was incorporated in
Hefei for operational purposes.

Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidatednftme statements: None.

During the preparation of the consolidated fmalnstatements, the substantial transactions letiee
consolidated entities are entirely written off.
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD

September 30, December 31, September 30,
Investments in Associates 2018 2017 2017

Unlisted shares

Material associates

Kingston Solutions Inc. $ 1,636,226 $ 1,623,790 $ 1,492,758
Associates that are not individually material

Epostar Electronics (BVI) Corporation 21,234 47,741 53,581

Microtops Design Corporation (“Microtops”) 23,210 21,563 26,132

PMS Technology Corporation 17,897 16,617 16,434

Hefei Xinpeng Technology Co., Ltd. 177,659 - -

$ 1,876,226 $ 1,709,711 $ 1,588,905
Material Joint Ventures

September 30, December 31, September 30,
Name of Associate 2018 2017 2017

Kingston Solutions Inc. 32.91% 32.91% 32.91%

Refer to Table 5 “Information on Investees” follmgithe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememnts f
the nature of activities, principal places of besand countries of incorporation of the assagiate

Flexmedia Electronics Corporation held a sharelsldmeeting on February 25, 2016, to approve
liquidation, and completed liquidation processeagust 29, 2018.

The calculation of the investments accounted farguthe equity method and the Group’s share ofipoof

loss and other comprehensive income of those imerds for the nine months ended September 30, 2018
and 2017 were based on financial statements tivatiat been reviewed.

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Testing Office Other Construction
Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment in Progress Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,142,341 $ 334,472 $ 40,787 $ 46,484 $ 390,000 $ 2,796,597
Additions - - 82,635 90,035 13,816 12,907 351,000 550,393
Disposals - (28,491) (8,167) (6,080) - (42,738)
Effects of foreign currency exchange

differences - - - 390 (78) (672) - (360)
Reclassification - - 741,000 24,059 (370) (23.980) (741,000) (291)
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,965,976 $ 420,465 $ 45,988 $ 28,659 $ - $ 3,303,601
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 17,242 $ 187,260 $ 133,845 $ 19,078 $ 12,721 $ - $ 370,146
Disposals - - - (28,491) (8,167) (6,080) - (42,738)
Depreciation - 2,763 32,062 76,125 9,426 2,951 - 123,327
Effects of foreign currency exchange

differences - - - 106 17) (24) - 65
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ - $ 20,005 $ 219,322 $ 181,585 $ 20,320 $ 9,568 $ - $ 450.800
Balance at September 30, 2017, net $ 813,738 $ 8,770 $ 1,746,654 $ 238,880 $ 25,668 $ 19,091 $ - $ 2,852,801

(Continued)
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18.

Land Testing Office Other Construction
Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment in Progress Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,965,976 $ 414,707 $ 46,685 $ 30,322 $ 3,300,203
Additions - - 27,409 205,787 12,499 13,086 258,781
Disposals (5,095) - (27,313) (10,143) (95) (42,646)
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference (1,297) (186) (80) (1,563)
Reclassification 1,585 - - 1,585
Balance at September 30, 2018 $ 813,738 $ 23,680 $ 1,993,385 $ 593,469 $ 48,855 $ 43,233 $ 3,516,360
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ - $ 20,926 $ 233,074 $ 188,492 $ 23,543 $ 11,287 $ 477,322
Disposals - (5,095) - (27,134) (10,106) (96) (42,431)
Depreciation 2,710 42,029 96,830 11,989 6,764 160,322
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference (658) (138) (30) (826)
Balance at September 30, 2018 $ - $ 18,541 $ 275,103 $ 257,530 $ 25,288 $ 17,925 $ 594,387
Balance at September 30, 2018, net $ 813,738 $ 5,139 $ 1,718,282 $ 335,939 $ 23,567 $ 25,308 - $ 2,921,973

(Concluded)

The above items of property, plant and equipmept depreciated on a straight-line basis over their

following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Land improvements

Buildings

Buildings - electrical engineering
Testing equipment

Office equipment

Other equipment

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

September 30,
2018

$ 111,463
36,360

Computer software
Technology license fees

$ 147,823

December 31,
2017

$ 153,511
64,619

$ 218,130

7 years
20-50 years
20 years

3 years

3 years

3-5 years

September 30,
2017

$ 133,556
66,466

$ 200,022

Except for the above amortization recognized, theu@ had no significant additions to, disposalsaoig

impairment of intangible assets for the three memtihded and nine months ended September 30, 2d18 an

2017.

The above items of intangible assets are amortized straight-line basis over the following estiadht

useful lives of the assets:

Computer software
Technology license fees
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19.

20.

21.

BORROWINGS

Short-term Borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

Bank loans
Interest rate (%)
Due date

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables

Salaries and bonuses payable
Others

OTHER LIABILITIES

Current

Other payables
Refund liabilities (Note 22)
Payables for purchases of equipment
Receipts under custody
Others

22. PROVISIONS - CURRENT

Sales returns and allowances

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
$ - $ -
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
$ 2,399,109 $ 2,598,177
1,339,517 1,138,600
$ 3,738,626 $ 3,736,777
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
$ 209,108 $ -
30,952 11,416
36,364 88,771
76,989 94,316
$ 353,413 $ 194,503
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
$ - $ 292,081
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September 30,
2017

$ 181,560
1.58
2017.11.7

September 30,
2017

$ 2,750,188
1,161,660

$ 3,911,848

September 30,
2017

$ -
15,011
82,907

169,608

$ 267,526

September 30,
2017

$ 399,253



For the Nine
Months Ended

September 30,
2017
Balance at January 1 $ 344,076
Additional provisions recognized 247,843
Usage (192,666)
Balance at September 30 $ 399,253

Prior to 2017, provisions for sales returns andvedinces are estimated based on historical expetienc
management’s judgment, and any known factors tlealdvsignificantly affect returns and allowances an
are recognized as a reduction of revenue in the gemod of the related product sales.

The Corporation started the application of IFRSM2018, and the estimated sales returns and poosis
are recognized as refund liabilities (other curteilities).

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Employee benefits expenses for the three monthedeadd nine months ended September 30, 2018 and
2017 in respect of the Group’s defined benefitreatient plans were $1,536 thousand, $1,441 thousand,

$4,607 thousand and $4,324 thousand, respectigety,were calculated using the actuarially deterchine
pension cost discount rate from the end of ther ffinancial years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

24. EQUITY

a. Share capital

Common shares

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) 230,000 230,000 230,000
Amount of shares authorized $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in
thousands) 197,074 197,074 197,074
Amount of shares issued $ 1,970,740 $ 1,970,740 $ 1,970,740

On November 10, 2016, an employee share option \wksapproved by the Corporation’s board of
directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisge8C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC'’s issued document No. 1050049740 and will teffect starting from December 6, 2016. In
accordance with Article 56, No. 2 of the Regulagi@overning the Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers and the regulations of theaisce of employee share options in 2016, shares ca
be issued as a whole or in parts depending ondiualaneeds within the year starting from the diate
issuer received the notification of approval frdre tompetent authorities. The employee share aption
were not issued because a very high cost of issuancld be incurred. The employee share options
cannot be issued after December 5, 2017.
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On November 13, 2017, an employee share option \wksapproved by the Corporation’s board of
directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisgle®C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC'’s issued document No. 1060047052 and will teffect starting from December 5, 2017. In
accordance with Article 56, No. 2 of the Regulasi@overning the Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers and the regulations of thaaisce of employee share options in 2017, shares ca
be issued as a whole or in parts depending ondtualaneeds within the year starting from the diate
issuer received the notification of approval frdra tompetent authorities.

Fully paid common shares, which have a par valugT#10, carry one vote per share and carry a right
to dividends.

Of the Corporation’s authorized capital sharesp@®,thousand shares were reserved for the issuance
of employee share options.

b. Capital surplus

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2017 2017

May be used to offset a deficit, distributed
as cash dividends, or transferred to share
capital*

Issuance of common shares $ 6,237,434 $ 6,237,434 $ 6,237,434
The difference between consideration

received or paid and the carrying amour

the subsidiaries’ net assets during actual

disposal or acquisition 148,758 148,758 148,758

May only be used to offset a deficit only

Expired share options 227 227 227

May not be used for any purpose

Share of changes in capital surplus of
associates or joint ventures 288,412 274,083 263,344

$ 6,674,831 $ 6,660,502 $ 6,649,763

* Such capital surplus may be used to offset acdgefin addition, when the Corporation has no dgfic
such capital surplus may be distributed as caslketids or transferred to share capital (limite@ to
certain percentage of the Corporation’s capitgblsisrand once a year).

c. Retained earnings and dividend policy

Under the dividends policy as set forth in the adeghArticles, where the Corporation made profiain
fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized fpaying taxes, offsetting losses of previous yesetjng
aside as legal reserve 10% of the remaining preétfing aside or reversing a special reserve in
accordance with the laws and regulations, and amgrremaining profit together with any undistrikalite
retained earnings shall be used by the Corporatiboard of directors as the basis for proposing a
distribution plan, which should be resolved in thlgareholders’ meeting for the distribution of
dividends and bonus to shareholders. For the palioh distribution of employees’ compensation and
remuneration to directors and supervisors befodeadter amendment, refer to Note 26 (e) “employees’
compensation and remuneration of directors andreigoes”.
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The Corporation’s dividend distribution policy takento consideration the current and future
investment environment, capital requirements, ddimesd international competition, capital budget
plans, shareholders’ interests, the balance betwetamined earnings and dividends, and the
Corporation’s long-term financial plans. In accorda with the laws and regulations, the board of
directors propose a distribution plan on an anbasis, which should be resolved in the sharehader’
meeting. Profit may be distributed as cash or skanelends; however, cash dividends should be at
least 10% of the total distribution.

The Corporation appropriates or reverses a spegsalrve in accordance with Rule No. 1010012865
issued by the Financial Supervisory Commissiontrdigtions can be made out of any subsequent
reversal of the debit to other equity items.

A legal reserve may be used to offset deficitghdf Corporation has no deficit and the legal resdias
exceeded 25% of the Corporation’s paid-in capitag excess may be transferred to capital or
distributed in cash.

The appropriations of earnings for 2017 and 201&vepproved in the shareholders’ meeting on June
8, 2018 and June 13, 2017, respectively, and weefellaws:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share (NT$)
For Year 2017 For Year 2016 For Year 2017 For Year 2016
Legal reserve $ 576,097 $ 486,699
Reversal from special reserve (25,965) (85,393)
Cash dividends 3,350,258 2,759,036 $17 $14

Other equity items
1) Exchange differences on translating the findrst&ements of foreign operations

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2018 2017
Balance at January 1 $ (67,147) $ (66,816)
Effect of change in tax rate 2,426 -
Exchange differences on translating foreign openati (13,152) (1,168)
Related income tax 2,630 199
Balance at September 30 $ (75,243) $ (67,785)
2) Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sal@finial assets
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 40,851
Unrealized gain arising on revaluation of availafolesale financial assets 76,983
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ 117,834
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IAS 39 $ 103,563
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (103,563)
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 $ -
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e.

25.

a.

3) Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at ©ClI

Balance at January 1 per IAS 39
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9
Balance at January 1 per IFRS 9
Recognized during the period

Unrealized gain (loss) - equity instruments

For the Nine
Months Ended
September 30,

2018

$ -
(316,201)
(316,201)

(160,091)

Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on equity insteats transferred to retained

earnings due to disposals
Balance at September 30

Non-controlling interests

Balance at January 1
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsides of
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (N@g 2
Attributable to non-controlling interests:
Share of gains for the period
Exchange difference on translating foreign operatio

Balance at September 30

INCOME TAXES

Income tax recognized in profit or loss:

The major components of tax expense (benefit) wsrllows:

For the Three Months Ended

28,216

$ (448,076)

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30

2018 2017
$ 5,400
- (7,626)

- 318
- 1,908

$ -

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Current tax
In respect of the current
period $ 281,340 $ 256,274 $ 571,651 $ 789,449
Adjustments for prior periods  (163,846) 4,069 (163,721) 2,514
Income tax expense of
unappropriated earnings - - 185,370 170,460
117,494 260,343 593,300 962,423
Deferred tax
In respect of the current
period (41,657) (13,000) 40,685 (76,235)
Effect of change in tax rate - - (49,937) -
Income tax expense recognized
in profit or loss $ 75,837 $ 247,343 $ 584,048 $ 886,188
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The Income Tax Act in the ROC was amended in 20itBthe corporate income tax rate was adjusted
from 17% to 20% effective in 2018. The effect of tthange in tax rate on deferred tax income to be
recognized in profit or loss is recognized in fualithe period in which the change in tax rate osclr

addition, the rate of the corporate surtax appledab 2018 unappropriated earnings will be reduced

from 10% to 5%.

b. Income tax benefit (expense) recognized in atberprehensive income

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Deferred income tax
Effect of change in tax rate $ - $ - $ 3,857 $ -
Recognized in other

comprehensive income

Translation of foreign

operations 4,943 (1,345) 2,630 199

Total income tax expense

(benefit) recognized in other

comprehensive income $ 4,943 $ (1,345) $ 6,487 $ 199

Cc. Income tax assessments

Associate

Phison Electronics Corp.

Lian Xu Dong Investment Corporation
Emtops Electronics Corp.

Ostek Corporation

Phisontech Electronics Taiwan Corp.
Memoryexchange Corporation

26. NET PROFIT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following items were included in the net profit
a. Other gains and losses

For the Three Months Ended
September 30

For the Year Ended

2016
2016
2016
2016
2016
2016

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30

2018 2017

Fair value changes of financial
assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets mandatorily

at FVTPL $ (37,480) $ -
Net foreign exchange gains
(losses) 24,689 1,067
Impairment losses recognized
on financial assets - (48,248)
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$ 22460 @ $ -
131,335 (318,021)

- (92,112)
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Gains (losses) on financial
assets held for trading
Others

Other income

Interest income
Bank deposits
Convertible bonds

Dividend income

Rental income

Others

Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Depreciation
Recognized in
Operating costs
Operating expenses

Amortization
Recognized in

General and administrative $
Research and development

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ - $ 8,231 $ - $ (12,300)
1,188 38 1,573 (497)
$ (11,603) $ (38,912) $ 155,368 $ (422,930)
(Concluded)

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30

2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 9,503 $ 8,884 $ 34,155 $ 28,913
3,122 - 3,122 -
29,062 27,350 32,470 29,149
348 627 1,228 1,902
19,484 4,839 58,239 18,994
$ 61,519 $ 41,700 $ 129,214 $ 78,958

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 58,124 $ 45,780 $ 160,322 $ 123,327
45,965 43,192 148,025 117,271
$ 104,089 $ 88972 $ 308,347 $ 240,598
$ 11,293 $ 11,958 $ 34,466 $ 25,739
46,831 33,822 125,856 97,588
$ 58,124 $ 45,780 $ 160,322 $ 123,327
2,131 $ 2241 $ 5912 $ 6,292
43,834 40,951 142,113 110,979
$ 45,965 $ 43,192 148,025 117,271
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d. Employee benefits expense

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Short-term employee benefits $ 852,063 $ 902,855 $ 2,139,201 $ 2,725,828
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan 20,810 17,368 59,058 50,805
Defined benefit plan 1,536 1,441 4,607 4,324
22,346 18,809 63,665 55,129

Other employee benefits
Employee welfare 14,761 14,452 41,624 40,656
Food stipend 10,448 9,228 30,296 27,188
25,209 23,680 71,920 67,844
Termination benefits 55 - 55 -

$ 899,673 $ 945344 $ 2,274,841 $ 2,848,801

Employee benefits
Recognized in operating

costs $ 52,031 $ 49,856 $ 154,779 $ 143,710
Recognized in operating
expenses 847,642 895,488 2,120,062 2,705,091

$ 899,673 $ 945344 2,274,841 2,848,801
e. Employees’ compensation and remuneration otwire and supervisors
The Corporation accrued employees’ compensationmemdneration of directors and supervisors at the
rates of 8%-19% and no higher than 1.5%, respdgfioé net profit before income tax, employees’
compensation, and remuneration of directors anérsigors. For the three months and nine months

September 30, 2018 and 2017, the employees’ coraflensand the remuneration of directors and
supervisors were as follows:

Expected rate

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2018 2017
Employees’ compensation 9.56% 10.18%
Remuneration of directors and supervisors 0.96% 1.02%

Amount

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Employees’ compensation $ 167,887 $ 211,815 $ 436,701 $ 613,111
Remuneration of directors and

supervisors $ 16,789 $ 21,181 $ 43,670 $ 61,311
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If there is a change in the amounts after the drimencial statements were authorized for isshe, t

differences are recorded as a change in the adngledtimate.

The employees’ compensation and the remuneratiatiréators and supervisors for 2017 and 2016
were approved in the Corporation’s board of directon March 16, 2018 and March 20, 2017,

respectively and were as follows:

For the Year Ended

2017 2016
Cash Stock Cash Stock
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
Employees’ compensation $ 670,000 $ - $ 550,000 $ -
Remuneration of directors and
supervisors 60,000 - 55,000 -

There was no difference between the actual amafreamployees’ compensation and remuneration of
directors and supervisors paid and the amountgnioed in the consolidated financial statements for

the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Information on the employees’ compensation and resration of directors and supervisors resolved by
the Corporation’s board of directors in 2018 and 2@ available at the Market Observation Post

System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
f. Gains or losses on foreign currency exchange

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Foreign exchange gains $ 105,159 $ 62,749 $ 517,681 $ 349,727
Foreign exchange losses (80,470) (61,682) (386,346) (667,748)
Net gain (loss) $ 24,689 $ 1,067 $ 131,335 $ (318,021)

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the Three Months Ended

(New Taiwan Dollars)

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Basic earnings per share $ 712 $ 8.12 $17.87 $ 22.69
Diluted earnings per share $ 7.09 $ 8.05 $17.65 $22.43
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The earnings and weighted-average number of conshares outstanding in the computation of earnings
per share were as follows:

Net Profit
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Earnings used in the computation
of basic earnings per share
Profit for the period attributable
to owners of the Corporation $ 1,403,078 $ 1,599,742 $ 3,521,577 $ 4,471,973

Earnings used in the computation
of diluted earnings per share
Profit for the period attributable
to owners of the Corporation $ 1,403,078 $ 1,599,742 $ 3,521,577 $ 4,471,973

Shares
(In Thousands of Shares)

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Weighted-average number of

common shares in the

computation of basic earnings

per share 197,074 197,074 197,074 197,074
Effect of potential dilutive comma

shares:

Employees’ compensation 691 1,703 2,406 2,333
Weighted-average number of

common shares used in the

computation of dilutive earnings

per share 197,765 198,777 199,480 199,407

If the Group offered to settle compensation or ls@supaid to employees in cash or shares, the Group
assumed the entire amount of the compensation wudes will be settled in shares, and the resulting
potential shares were included in the weightedayernumber of shares outstanding used in the
computation of diluted earnings per share, as ffeeteis dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the paotél
shares is included in the computation of dilutedniegs per share until the number of shares to be
distributed to employees is resolved in the follogvwear.

. EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERE STS
In order to integrate the equity of Phisontech &@tdcs (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. for future operational
planning, the Corporation’s board of directors haldneeting on May 11, 2017 and, in that meeting,

resolved to acquire 13% minority shares at NT$7423 share on June 20, 2017. The acquisitioneseth
minority shares increased the Corporation’s shddéigmto 100%.
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that estiti the Group will be able to continue as going
concerns while maximizing the return to shareha@dérough the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group is consistedandebts (borrowings offset by cash and cash atgrits)
and equity (comprising share capital issued, chguitglus, retained earnings and other equity).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposagital requirements.
Key management personnel of the Group review tipitatastructure on an annual basis. As part of this
review, the key management personnel considerdsieaf capital and the risks associated with eda$sc
of capital. Based on recommendations of the keyagament personnel, in order to balance the overall
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amotidividends paid to shareholders, or the amoumteof
debt issued or existing debt redeemed.
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair value of financial instruments not carrgdair value
The Group’s management considers the carrying ataoatognized in the consolidated financial
statements for financial assets and financial liteds not carried at fair value to approximateittair
values or their fair values cannot be reliably meeg.
b. Fair value of financial instruments measurefdiatvalue on a recurring basis

1) Fair value hierarchy

September 30, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic quoted shares $ 441,807 $ - % - $ 441,807
Domestic unlisted shares - - 255,041 255,041
Overseas unlisted shares - - 92,032 92,032
Domestic private equity funds - - 47,347 47,347
Beneficiary certificates -
open-end funds 1,676,945 - - 1,676,945
$ 2,118,752 $ - $ 394,420 $ 2,513,172

Financial assets at FVTOCI
Investments in equity

instruments
Domestic unlisted shares  $ - % - $ 161628 $ 161,628
Overseas unlisted shares - - 289,358 289,358

$ - $ - $ 450986 $ 450,986
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December 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic quoted shares $ 67,095 $ - $ - $ 67,095
Beneficiary certificates -
open-end funds 1,150,400 - - 1,150,400
Convertible bonds - - 53,722 53,722
$ 1217495 $ - 3 53,722 $ 1,271,217
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Investments in equity
instruments
Unlisted debt securities -
ROC $ - 3 - $ 434763 $ 434,763

September 30, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic quoted shares $ 64,752 $ - % - % 64,752
Beneficiary certificates -
open-end funds 1,148,581 - - 1,148,581
Convertible bonds 49,675 - - 49,675
$ 1,263,008 $ - % - $ 1,263,008
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Investments in equity
instruments
Unlisted debt securities -
ROC $ - % - $ 449034 $ 449,034

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and théonine months ended September 30, 2018 and
2017.
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2) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurensaritfinancial instruments

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018

Financial
Financial Assets at FVTPL Assets at
Derivatives - Derivatives - FVTOCI
Private Equity Convertible Equity Equity
Financial Assets Funds Bonds Instruments Instruments Total

Balance at January 1, 2018

(IAS 39) $ - $ 53,722 $ 434,763 $ - $ 488,485
Transfers into Level 3

(Application IFRS 9) 47,032 - 302,656 511,227 860,915
Recognized in profit or loss

Other gains and losses 315 (4,047) 101,071 - 97,339
Recognized in other

comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on

financial assets at

FVTOCI - - - (160,091) (160,091)
Purchases - - 13,201 102,854 116,055
Sales - (49,675) - (3,004) (52,679)
Capital reduction and

refund of shares - - (69,855) - (69,855)
Transfers out of Level 3 - - (434,763) - (434,763)
Balance at September 30,

2018 $ 47,347 $ - $ 347,073 $ 450,986 $ 845,406
For the nine months ended September 30, 2017

Available-for-
Financial Assets sale Financial
at FVTPL Assets
Convertible Equity
Financial Assets Bonds Instruments Total

Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 372,051 $ 372,051
Recognized in other comprehensive

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

financial assets - 76,983 76,983
Balance at September 30, 2017 $ - $ 449,034 $ 449,034

3) Valuation techniques and inputs applied for LL&v&ir value measurement
a) The fair values of convertible bonds are deteenhiusing Binary Tree Evaluation Model and

option pricing models where the significant unokabte inputs are historical volatility. As of
December 31, 2017, the historical volatility useabw6.75%.
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b)

d)

The fair values of unlisted debt securities -QRébe as follows:

December 31, 2017

Significant Relevance betwee Sensitivity Analysis of
Valuation Unobservable Quantitative Inputs and Fair Relation between Inputs
Financial Assets Techniques Inputs Information Values and Fair Values
Available-for-sale Market approach Lack of liquidity 8.92% The higher the level When the lack of liquidity
shares (price-earnings discount of liquidity, the percentage increases/
ratio and lower the decreases by 10%, equity
price-to-book estimation of fair ~ of the Corporation will
ratio) value. increase/decrease by
$43,476 thousand.
September 30, 2017
Significant Relevance betwee Sensitivity Analysis of
Valuation Unobservable Quantitative Inputs and Fair Relation between Inputs
Financial Assets Techniques Inputs Information Value and Fair Values
Available-for-sale Market approach Lack of liquidity 8.06% The higher the level When the lack of liquidity
shares (price-earnings discount of liquidity, the percentage
ratio and lower the increases/decreases by
price-to-book estimation of fair 10%, equity of the
ratio) value. Corporation will

decrease/increase by
$44,903 thousand.

The fair values of unlisted equity securitiedomestic and foreign were determined using the
market approach. In accordance with the tradingepriof analogous subjects, taking the
difference of the unlisted equity securities andlagous subjects into consideration, the value
of the unlisted equity securities are estimatedigishe appropriate multiplier. The significant
unobservable inputs used are listed in the tabtebe decrease of the discount for the lack of
marketability used in isolation would result inianrease in fair value.

September 30
2018 2017
Discount for lack of marketability 15% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using theketaapproach starting from January 1,
2018, after the application of IFRS 9.

The fair values of unlisted equity securitiedoreign were determined using the income
approach. In this approach, the discounted cash h@thod was used to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits éodbrived from the ownership of these
investees. The significant unobservable inputs @sedisted in the table below. Decreases in
the discount for non-controlling interests, thecdimt for lack of marketability and the
weighted-average cost of capital (WACC) would reguincreases in fair value. A decrease of
sustainable revenue growth rates would resultdaaease in fair value.

September 30
2018 2017
Discount for non-controlling interest 15% Note
Discount for lack of marketability 15% Note
Sustainable revenue growth rates 2% Note
WACC 14.3% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using therme approach starting from January 1,
2018, after the application of IFRS 9.
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C.

e) The fair values of unlisted equity securitiedomestic and foreign and private equity funds

were determined using the asset-based approaabrdér to reflect the overall value of the
Corporation or business, the total market valuthefindividual assets and individual liabilities
of the evaluation target are evaluated. The siggnifi unobservable inputs used are listed in the
table below. Decreases in the discount for nonrodiimg interests and the discount for a lack

of marketability would result in increases in fealue.

September 30
2018 2017
Discount for non-controlling interests 10% Note
Discount for lack of marketability 10% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using thetdsassed approach starting from January

1, 2018, after the application of IFRS 9.
Categories of financial instruments

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2017 2017

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

Held for trading $ -

Mandatorily at FVTPL 2,513,172 - -
Loans and receivables (Note 1) - 20,242,977 18,457,552
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 2) - 1,252,390 1,303,949
Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 3) 19,411,304 - -
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity instruments 450,986 - -

$ 1,271,217 $ 1,263,008

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note 4) 8,389,024 7,384,022 8,943,528

Note 1: The balance includes loans and receivabissured at amortized cost, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, debt investments with noseactiarket, notes receivable, accounts

receivable and other receivables.

Note 2: The balance includes the carrying amourdwaiilable-for-sale financial assets measured at

cost.

Note 3: The balance includes financial assets medsat amortized cost, which comprise cash and

cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts gdeiand other receivables.

Note 4: The balances include financial liabilitieseasured at amortized cost, which comprise

short-term and long-term loans, short-term billggide, and trade and other payables.
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d. Financial risk management objectives and pdicie

The Group’s major financial instruments include igginvestments, trade receivables, trade payables
and borrowings. The Group’s financial managemepidenent provides services to the business unit
and coordinates access the operation in domeddiinéernational financial markets. The risks in&ud
market risk (including foreign currency risk, irget rate risk and other price risk), credit risld an
liquidity risk.

1) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to theancial risks of changes in foreign currency rates
and interest rates.

a)

b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group had foreign currency sales and purchagkish exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk. To avoid the decrease in foreignreanoy assets and adverse fluctuations of
future cash flows resulting from changes in foreggmrency exchange rates, the Group used
foreign currency borrowings to hedge risks of fgneturrency exchange rates. The gain or loss
caused by changes in foreign currency exchangs veitebe offset by profit or loss from the
hedge. As a result, the market risk is immaterial.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign curgemtznominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (including those eliminated @ansolidation) and of the derivatives exposed
to foreign currency risk at the end of the repariperiod are referred to Note 35.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group was mainly exposed to the U.S. dollar.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivitya 6% increase and decrease in the New
Taiwan dollar (the functional currency) against thievant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
rate of 6% used when reporting foreign currencl imdernally to key management personnel
and represents management’'s assessment of thenabhs@ossible change. The sensitivity
analysis included only outstanding foreign curredegominated monetary items and adjusts its
translation at the end of the reporting period &6% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease ingrgstofit and other equity associated with the
New Taiwan dollar strengthens 6% against the releearrency. For a 6% weakening of the
New Taiwan dollar against the relevant currencgrehwvould be an equal and opposite impact
on pre-tax profit and other equity and the balartedsw would be negative.

Impact of USD
For the Nine Months Ended

September 30
2018 2017
Profit or loss $ 351,536 $ 264,871

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to interest rate risk becenttes in the Group borrowed funds at
both fixed and floating interest rates.
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The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assetd financial liabilities with exposure to
interest rates at the end of the reporting perietevas follows:

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets $ 4,833,133 $ 4,584,471 $ 4,184,991
Cash flow interest rate risk
Financial assets 8,633,336 9,638,332 8,630,007
Financial liabilities - - 181,560

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 1 basis point higher ahdther variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the nine months endegt8mber 30, 2018 and 2017 would have
increase by $648 thousand and $634 thousand, teshec

c) Other price risk
The Group was exposed to equity price risks throilghinvestments in international and
domestic quoted and unlisted stocks, convertibledbp private equity funds and beneficial

certificates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined basedhe Group’s exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 1% higher/lower, prepeafit for the nine months ended September

30, 2018 would have increased/decreased by $28bB®and, as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, and the predtrer comprehensive income for the nine

months ended September 30, 2018 would have inakksgeased by $4,510 thousand, as a
result of the changes in fair value of financiaets at FVTOCI.

If equity prices had been 1% higher/lower, prepeafit for the nine months ended September
30, 2017 would have increased/decreased by $12@88and, as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments, and the taseother comprehensive income for the nine
months ended September 30, 2017 would increaseaxiby $4,490 thousand, as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-salereba

2) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpavtly default on its contractual obligations resodi

in a financial loss to the Group. As at the endth@ reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk, which would cause a fimg@ntoss to the Group due to a failure of
counterparties to discharge an obligation and firdrguarantees provided by the Group, comes
from the carrying amounts of the respective recogphifinancial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheets.

The targets of the aforementioned evaluation a@nfiial assets that could potentially be influenced
by the Group’s counterparties defaulting on themtcactual obligations and contracts with positive

fair values as of the balance sheet date. The mgstoof the Group are financial institutions or

manufacturers with good credit ratings; and thiusted is no expected material credit risk.
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3) Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring amdhintaining a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Groop&ations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, managemmonitors the utilization of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. The Grelipsron bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As of September 30, 2018, Deber 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017, he
Group had available unutilized overdraft and shemt bank loan facilities of approximately
$7,677,000 thousand, $6,820,500 thousand and $6482¢housand, respectively.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remainirgntractual maturity for its non-derivative finarcia
liabilities with agreed upon repayment periods. Tdi#e was drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities from the earliest @aon which the Group can be required to pay.

September 30, 2018

On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More Than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities $ 3,561,784 $ 2,977,040 $ 2,268,695 $ -3 -
December 31, 2017
On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More Than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities $ 2,641,026 $ 2,875,361 $ 2,960,437 $ -8 -
September 30, 2017
On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More Than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities $ 3,394,930 $ 3,169,503 $ 3,213,381 $ - $ -
Variable interest rate instruments 151,300 30,260 - - -
$ 3,546,230 $ 3,199,763 $ 3,213,381 $ - $ -

Information on transfers of financial assets

Refer to Note 11 for more information relating e Group’s factored trade receivables.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Corporatiah its subsidiaries have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this notsides information disclosed elsewhere in the atbégs,
details of transactions between the Group and oéheted parties are disclosed below.

a. Related party and its relationship

Related Party

Relationship

Toshiba International Procurement Hong Kong, Ltd.
Toshiba Memory America, Inc.

Toshiba Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Toshiba Corporation, Japan

Toshiba Client Solutions ANZ Pty Limited

Toshiba Memory Corporation

Toshiba Electronics Asia (Singapore) Pte., Ltd.
Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc.
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation

Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation
Orient Semiconductor Electronics Ltd.

Dawning Leading Technology Inc.

Apacer Technology Inc.

Kingston Solutions Inc.

PMS Technology Corporation

Microtops Design Corporation

Epostar Electronics Corporation

Operating revenue

For the Three Months Ended

Other related parties
Other related parties
Other related parties
Other related parties
Otherated parties
Other related parties
heDtrelated parties

Otetated parties
Other relatedipa
theOrelated parties
Other ralgparties
Other relatedipart
Other related parties
Associates
Associates
Associates
Associates

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
Related Party Category 2018 2017 2018 2017
Associates $ 13,399 $ 1,332  $ 22,357 % 12,174
Other related parties 514,450 359,290 1,358,508 1,401,349

$ 527,849 $ 360,622 $ 1,380,865 $ 1,413,523

The terms of sales to related parties were sirtvlénose for third parties.
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c. Operating costs

1) Purchase of goods

Related Party Category

Associates
Other related parties

Toshiba Memory Taiwan

Corporation
Toshiba Memory
America, Inc.
Toshiba America
Electronic
Components, Inc.
Toshiba Electronic

Components Taiwan

Corporation
Others

2) Processing costs

Related Party Category

Associates
Other related parties

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30

2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 59,632 $ 95,002 $ 542,189 $ 268,592
3,153,968 - 10,393,436 -
1,007,761 - 3,549,561 -
- 1,276,345 - 2,795,015
- 4,028,574 168 12,335,626
3,466 8,758 8,248 18,921
$ 4224827 $ 5,408,679 $ 14,493,602 $ 15,418,154

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

d. Receivables from related parties

Related Party Category

Associates
Other related parties

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ - $ 71 % 154 % 649
528,225 377,201 1,231,341 1,092,242
$ 528,225 $ 377,272 $ 1,231,495 $ 1,092,891
The terms of operating costs from related partiesevgimilar to those for third parties.
September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2017 2017
$ 13,644 $ 465 $ 830
241,007 317,686 230,031
$ 254,651 $ 318,151 $ 230,861

The outstanding trade receivables from relatedigsarare unsecured. No bad debt expense was
recognized for the allowance for impaired tradeenegbles with respect to the amounts owed by relate

parties.
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e. Payables to related parties

September 30, December 31, September 30,

Related-party Categories 2018 2017 2017
Associates $ 41,414 $ 24,959 $ 52,743
Other related parties

Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation 1,653,508 2,105,363 -
Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan

Corporation - 17 2,511,797
Toshiba America Electronic Components,

Inc. - - 592,391
Others 723,110 430,199 153,691

$ 2,418,032 $ 2,560,538 $ 3,310,622
The outstanding trade payables from related paatiesinsecured.

f. Compensation of key management personnel

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits $ 67,308 $ 126,171 $ 167,126 $ 247,348
Post-employment benefits 447 376 1,267 1,085
Other employee benefits 1,262 2,030 3,599 4,011

$ 69,017 $ 128,577 $ 171,992 $ 252,444

The remuneration of directors and key executives dedermined by the remuneration committee based
on the performance of individuals and market trends

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
a. The Group as lessee
The Group’s lease contracts for a factory and &éineoéxpire on December 31, 2022.
The future minimum lease payments of non-cancealapkrating leases commitments were as follows:

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Not later than 1 year $ 20,877 $ 17,644 $ 17,558
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 26,517 34,538 38,068

47,394 52,182 $ 55,626
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33.

34.

b. The Group as lessor

Operating leases all relate to the property ownethb Group, and such leases will expire on March
15, 20109.

The future minimum lease receivables of non-caabdl operating leases were as follows:

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Not later than 1 year $ 361 $ 2,087 $ 905

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL OR FOR SECURITY
The following assets were provided as collateratte tariff of imported raw materials:

September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2017 2017

Refundable deposits for the Customs Duty

Bureau -certificates of deposit (financial ass

at amortized cost) $ 56,922 $ - $ -
Refundable deposits for the Customs Duty

Bureau - certificates of deposit (debt

investments with no active market) - 80,534 79,713

$ 56,922 $ 80,534 $ 79,713

SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGN IZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, ifigant commitments and contingencies of the Caaion
as of September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017 artdrSegr 30, 2017 were as follows:

Significant Commitments

September 30, December 31, September 30,

2018 2017 2017
Unused letters of credit $ 1,500,000 $ 2,046,500 $ 2,093,000
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35. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Group entities’ monetary financial assets aatoilities denominated in foreign currencies aggted
by the foreign currencies other than functionarencies and the related exchange rates betweeigriore
currencies and respective functional currenciegwasrfollows:

(New Taiwan Dollars and Foreign Currencies in Thouands)

September 30, 2018

Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) $ 288,616 30.5250 $ 8,810,000
USD (USD:CNY) 7,280 6.8792 222,215
CNY (CNY:NTD) 33,007 4.4360 146,419
Financial liabilities
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) 103,957 30.5250 3,173,282
December 31, 2017
Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) $ 290,208 29.7600 $ 8,636,591
USD (USD:CNY) 14,854 6.5342 442,054
CNY (CNY:NTD) 32,782 4.5650 149,648
Financial liabilities
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) 95,955 29.7600 2,855,622
September 30, 2017
Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) $ 265,665 30.2600 $ 8,039,032
USD (USD:CNY) 16,181 6.6369 489,625
CNY (CNY:NTD) 32,548 4.5510 148,125
Financial liabilities
Monetary
USD (USD:NTD) 135,960 30.260 4,114,142
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36.

For the three months ended and nine months engedrBieer 30, 2018 and 2017, (realized and unreglized
net foreign exchange gains were $24,689 thousdn@6¥ thousand, $131,335 thousand and loss $318,021
thousand, respectively. It is impractical to diselanet foreign exchange gains (losses) by eacifisagrt
foreign currency due to the variety of the foremmmrency transactions and functional currencieshef
Group’s entities.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENT

In April 2018, Macronix International Co., Ltd. aged the Corporation of infringement of one opitsent
rights. In October 2018, Macronix International Cbtd. withdrew the lawsuit. Therefore, the Taiwan
Intellectual Property Court has terminated the case

The Corporation has been under statutory invesbigaince August 5, 2016 for an alleged violatidrhe
Securities and Exchange Act, and the investigati@s conducted by the Taiwan Hsinchu District
Prosecutorial Office and concluded on August 31,72@ccording to the press release announcememt fro
the Taiwan Hsinchu District Prosecutorial Office $@ptember 1, 2017, under the Securities and Egehan
Act and related provisions in the Criminal Codes grosecutor charged the chairman of the Corparatio
and others culminating in either deferred prosecutir the dropping of the claim for further prostmu
The Taiwan Hsinchu District Prosecutorial Officedaficio sent the ruling to the Taiwan High Proskcs
Office for reconsideration. As of November 18, 2017 regard to the partial revocation and patrtial
dismissal charge by the Taiwan High Court Prose@it@ffice against the chairman of the Corporation
and others, the case is under re-investigation tledinancial position and operations of the Coation
are not affected in respect of this matter.

37. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

a. Information about significant transactions anithbestees:
1) Financing provided to others. (None)
2) Endorsements/guarantees provided. (None)

3) Marketable securities held (excluding investtadn subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures).
(Table 1)

4) Marketable securities acquired and disposeat obsts or prices of at least NT$300 million o%20
of the paid-in capital. (None)

5) Acquisitions of individual real estate at coefsat least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (None)

6) Disposals of individual real estate at prickatdeast NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in d¢ap
(None)

7) Total purchases from or sales to related madimounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% af th
paid-in capital. (Table 2)

8) Receivables from related parties amounting ttdeast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (Table 3)

9) Trading in derivative instruments. (None)

10) Other: Intercompany relationships and signiftaatercompany transactions. (Table 4)
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11) Information of investees. (Table 5)
c. Information on investments in mainland China:

1) Information on any investee company in mainl&tdna, showing the name, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investmemward and outward remittance of funds,
ownership percentage, net income of investeessiment income or loss, carrying amount of the
investment at the end of the period, repatriatmnisivestment income, and limit on the amount of
investments in the mainland China area. (Table 6)

2) Any of the following significant transactions tiviinvestee companies in mainland China, either
directly or indirectly through a third party, arftetr prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or
losses. (Table 7)

a) The amount and percentage of purchases andidneck and percentage of the related payables
at the end of the period.

b) The amount and percentage of sales and thedeatard percentage of the related receivables at
the end of the period.

¢) The amount of property transactions and the atnofuthe resultant gains or losses.

d) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsesnguiarantees or pledges of collateral at the
end of the period and their purposes.

e) The highest period balance, the end of peridanba, the interest rate range, and total current
period interest with respect to financing of funds.

f) Other transactions that have a material effectttte profit or loss for the period or on the
financial position, such as the rendering or receiservices.
38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Information reported to the chief operating decisimaker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on phe tf goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments ideludepartments that design and sell flash memory
controllers and make investments.
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a. Segment revenue and results

The following was an analysis of the Group’s reverand results from continuing operations by
reportable segments:

Segment Revenue Segment Profits
For the Three Months Ended  For the Three Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Department that designs and
sells flash memory
controllers $ 11,036,833 $ 11,173,627 $ 1,538,009 $ 1,777,462
Investment department (187) (32)

Total operating segments $ 11,036,833 $ 11,173,627 1,537,822 1,777,430

Other gains and losses (11,603) (38,912)
Share of gains of associates (108,567) 68,352
Other income 61,519 41,700
Financial costs (256) (1,485)
Income before income tax $ 1478915 $ 1,847,085

Segment Revenue Segment Profits

For the Nine Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2018 2017 2018 2017

Department that designs and
sells flash memory

controllers $ 30,665,532 $ 31,221,987 $ 3,849,394 $ 5,375,728
Investment department - - (341) (756)
Total operating segments $ 30,665,532 $ 31,221,987 3,849,053 5,374,972
Other gains and losses 155,368 (422,930)
Share of gains of associates (24,269 332,286
Other income 129,214 78,958
Financial costs (3.749 (4,807)
Income before income tax $ 4105625 $ 5,358,479

Segment revenue reported above was generated fmmal customers. There were no intersegment
sales for the nine months ended September 30, 201.2017.

Segment profit represented the profit before taxedh by each segment without the share of gains or
losses of associates, rental income, interest iecgains or losses on disposal of property, pladt a
equipment, gains or losses on sales of investmertfiange gains or losses, valuation gains ordosse
on financial instruments, financial costs and inedax expense.

b. Segment assets and liabilities

The Group does not report segment assets anditlegbibr other segment information to the chief
operating decision maker. Therefore, no informatsodisclosed here.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD (EXCLUDING INVESTMENTS |

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

N SUBSIDIARIES)

TABLE 1
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September 30, 2018
Holding Company Name Marketable ISecuntl,\els tTyf e/Name and Rslaltéc_mstélp with the Financial Statement Account Shares or Units| Carrying Percentage of K | Note
ssuer (Note 1) olding Company (In Thousands) Amount Ownership (%) Market Value
(Note 2)
Phison Electronics Corp. |__Beneficiary certificates
Mega Diamond Money Market Fund - Financial asaeBVTPL - current 16,326 $ 204,197 - $ 207, |Note 3
FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Financial ass¢fSVTPL - current 13,369 203,984 - 208,98/ Note 3
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 20,685 213,225 - 213,225 | Note 3
Fund
Yuanta De-Li Money Market Fund - Financial assatEVTPL - current 9,298 151,190 - 151,19(Note 3
Jih Sun Money Market Fund - Financial assets atfV- current 13,767 203,409 - 203,409 eNdt
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 8,119 01,459 - 101,459 | Note 3
Market Fund
CTBC Hwa-win Money Market Fund - Financial assetsVTPL - current 18,239 200,460 - 200,46/ Note 3
Prudential Financial Money Market Ft - Financial assets at FVTF- curren 9,537 150,44 - 150,44. |Note &
Eastspring Investments Well Pool Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 11,08[ 150,431 - 150,431 | Note 3
Market Fund
Common shares
Orient Semiconductor Electronics, Ltd. - Finaneis$ets at FVTPL - current 9,656 108,147 1.20 108,147 | Note 4
Apacer Technology Inc. - Financial assets at FVTRurrent 10,050 333,660 9.96 333,660 eNbot
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund IV L.P. - Financialetssat FVTPL - non-current 1,000 4,142 0.50 4,142 | Note 5
AppWorks Fund | Co., Ltd. - Financial assets afPV - non-current 2,165 31,711 18.75 31,71 Note 5
Aptos Technology Inc. - Financial assets at FVTO@bn-current 1,059 - 1.86 - -
Viva Baseball Co., Ltd. - Financial assets at F\ZTOGnon-current Note 6 - 8.33 - -
Adam Elements International Co., Ltd. - Finaneisdets at FVTOCI - non-current 1,71(¢ 18,761 9.0a 18,761 | Note 5
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund VI L.P. - Financialetssat FVTPL - non-current 950 40,372 0.67 40,372 | Note 5
Appworks Fund Il Co., Ltd. - Financial assets ®fPL - non-current 8,850 177,417 11.11 AT7 |Note5
Innorich Venture Capital Corp. - Financial assatsVTPL - non-current 3,000 20,913 5.61 0,923 |Note 5
THLight Co., Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTOCIlonacurrent 6,388 - 17.94 - -
UD INFO Corp. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 570 35,305 18.15 35,305| Note5
GeoThings, Inc. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 150 - 6.70 - -
Ironyun Incorporated (preference shares) - Firdrdsets at FVTOCI - non-current 5,00 - 25.9 - -
Gospal Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 837,8 3,004 3.40 3,004| Note 7
Dawning Leading Technology Inc. - Financial ass¢t8VTOCI - non-current 7,478 22,433 3.26 22,433 | Note 8
CAL-COMP INDUSTRIA DE - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 16,96 52,239 17.16 52,239| Note 5
SEMICONDUCTORES S.A.
Gomore Inc - Financial assets at FVTO® nor-curren 16,92¢ 6,77 6.1¢ 6,77: |Note i
Patriot Memory Asia Headquarter - Financial asae®vTOCI - non-current 580 7,540 4.33 54D, |Note 7
Taishan Buffalo Investment Co., Ltd. - Financisdets at FVTPL - non-current 25,000 25,000 081. 25,000 | Note 7
(Continued)




September 30, 2018
. Marketable Securities Type/Name and |Relationship with the . . . Carrying
Holding Company Name Issuer (Note 1) Holding Company Financial Statement Account Shares or Units| Amount Percentage of Market Value Note
(In Thousands) (Note 2) Ownership (%)
Private equity fund
Fuh Hwa Smart Energy Fund - Financial assets &HE\* non-current 6,000 $ 47,347 3.81 $ 47,3 |Note 5
Lian Xu Dong Investment|_ Beneficiary certificates
Corporation FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Ficial assets at FVTPL - current 1,986 30,304 - 30,304 | Note 3
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 2,424 0,292 - 30,292 | Note 3
Market Fund
Common shares
United Power Research Technology Corp. - Finarsséts at FVTOCI - non-current 5,616 45,892 16.12 45,892 | Note 5
Fresco Logic, Inc. (preference shares) - Finaragaéts at FVTOCI - non-current 1,25 - 2.23 - -
Translink Capital Partners lll, L.P. - Financiabats at FVTPL - non-current 1,44Q 38,493 81.1 38,493 | Note 5
Translink Capital Partners IV L.P - Financial assg FVTPL - non-current 300 9,025 0.92 ,029 | Note 7
Liqid, Inc. (preference shares) - Financial asaeBvVTOCI - non-current 2,111 107,273 10.92 107,273 | Note 5
Weltronics Corp., Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTO®@on-current 350 - 14.10 - -
UMBO CV Inc. (preference shares) - Financial asaeFVTOCI - non-current 1,626 24,921 3.58 24,921 | Note 5
Omni Media International Incorporation - Finanaakets at FVTOCI - non-current 1,714 31,697 13.84 31,697 | Note 5
RENIAC, INC. (preference shares) - Financial asaeFVTOCI - non-current 302 15,300 3.46 15,300 | Note 7
Emtops Electronics Beneficiary certificates - o funds
Corporation Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 815 180, - 10,182 | Note 3
Market Fund
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 988 180, - 10,189 | Note 3
Fund
Phisontech Electronic Beneficiary certificate
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. United Cash Fund - Finanasalets at FVTPL - current 2,394 17,178 - 17,178 | Note 3
Cloud Solution Global Common shares
Limited My Digital Discount, Inc. - Financial ats at FVTOCI - non-current - - 19.00 -
Hefei Core Storage Common shares
Electronic Limited Hangzhou Hualan Microelectigume Co., Ltd - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 3,000 79,848 474 79,848 | Note 7
Note 1: The marketable securities listed refeh#otypes of financial instruments within the scop&ternational Financial Reporting Standard éicial Instruments Recognition and Measurement”.
Note 2: The carrying amount is either the fair eatu the original cost net of allowance loss.
Note 3: The calculation of the market value wagtam the net asset value as of September 30, 2018.
Note 4: The calculation of the market value wastam the closing price as of September 30, 2018.
Note 5: Refer to Note 30 (b)-3 for market valuemfation.
Note 6: The issuing company is not limited by skare
(Continued)
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Note 7: The calculation of the market value wastam the most recent buying price.

Note 8: On August 29, 2018, Dawning Leading Tecbgylinc.’s interim board of shareholders have agibhe resolution to approve the merger with Kingly Electronics Corp., at NT$3 per common shanegdéhe current market value is
measured at $3 per share.

Note 9: The Group held marketable securities thdtriot been guaranteed, pledged or mortgaged lagecal or restricted by other commitments.

(Concluded)
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AM OUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PA ID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

TABLE 2

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Pa ’\;%tlees(/)éggger;f/sable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Purchase/ % of Pavment Y % of Note
Amount 0 Payment Terms Unit Price y Ending Balance 0
Sale Total Terms Total
Phison Electronics Corp|Kingston Solutions Inc. Equity-method investee glibsy Purchase $ 526,320 3 |[Net 30 days after monthly closing None None $ 41,414) Q) -
Toshiba Memory America, Inc. The subsidiary of @eporation’s legalPurchase 3,549,561l 17 |Net 30 days after receipt date None None Rz (@) -
entity board of directors
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation The subsididrihe Corporation’s leggPurchase 10,393,436 50 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 1,683,508) (36) -
entity board of directors
Orient Semiconductor Electronics, L{@lhe Corporation is its director Processing 956,065 4 |Net 15 days after monthly closing None None 06(373) (@) -
cost
Dawning Leading Technology Inc. The Corporatioitsgirector Processing 275,276 1 |Net 45 days after monthly closing None None 1,407) 2) -
cost
Toshiba Singapore Pte. Ltd. The associates obsidiary, which is aSale (169,716) (1) |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None 49,233 1 -
legal entity on the Corporation’s bogrd
of directors
Toshiba Memory Corporation The Corporation’s legyatity board of |Sale (654,368) (2) |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None 88,161 2 -
directors
Apacer Technology Inc. The Corporation is its clioe Sale (407,670) (1) |Net45 days after monthly closing None None 103,435 2 -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limite§ub-subsidiary Sale (249,141) (1) |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 16,368 0 -
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 3

_ ‘ ‘ Overdue R:crzi(\)/lg:jt in Allowa_mce for
Company Name Related Party Relationship Ending Balace| Turnover Rate Amount Action Taken Subsequent Impﬁggnsent
Period (Note)
Phison Electronics Corp. Apacer Technology Inc. Thoeporation is its director $ 103,435 7.95 $ - $ 103,435 $ -

Note: As of November 1, 2018.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOM PANY TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

TABLE 4

Transaction Details Percentage of
Transaction
Number Company Name Counterparty Flow O.f ) Amou_nt 0
Transaction Account Amount Transaction Terms Consolidated
Operating Revenue|
or Total Assets (%)
Phison Electronics Corp. Hefei Core Storage Ededt Limited 1 Sales revenue $ 249,141 Baserkgular terms 1
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Accourgseivable 16,368 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Otherglalgs 32,024 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Reseangbense 112,323 Based on regular terms -
Phisontech Electronics Taiwan Cc 1 Sales revent 4,97: Based on regular teri -
Phisontech Electronics Taiwan Corp. 1 Accountgirable 1,709 Based on regular terms -
Ostek Corporation 1 Manufacturing expenses 978, Based on regular terms -
Ostek Corporatic 1 Accounts payable 4,79: Based on regular teri -
Ostek Corporation 1 Other payables 1,928 Baseggular terms -
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 1 Sales expenses 12,426 Based on regular terms -
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 1 Other payables 5,210 Based on regular terms -
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 1 eSatvenue 7,720 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology Limited 1 Salegenue 34,727 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology Limited 1 Acotureceivable 34,500 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic LimiteHefei Ruhan Electronic Technology Limited 2 Invemto 36,093 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology Limited 2 Acotsipayable 32,843 Based on regular terms -

The following numerals represent the ¢

a. Parent company to subsidiary: 1.
b. Between subsidiaries: 2.

orradpwy directional flow of transactions.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION OF INVESTEES
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 5

Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2018
. . : Percentage o Net (Loss) Investment
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts|September 30 December 31 Number of Ownershi Carrying |Income of the (Loss) Incom Note
2018 2017 Shares (%) p Amount Investee
Phison Electronics Corp.| Kingston Solutions Inc. iWEa Embedded flash productand| $ 106,050 $ 106,050/ 10,605,000 32.91 $ 1,636,226 $ 37,789| $ 12,436 |Equity-method
market development investee
Emtops Electronics Taiwan Sale of flash memory controllg 95,000 95,000 9,500,000 100.00 70,821 713 713 |Subsidiary
Corporation and peripheral system
applications
Lian Xu Dong Investment  [Taiwan Investment 650,000 650,000/ 65,000,000 100.00 505,192 2,138 2,138 [Subsidiary
Corporation
Microtops Design CorporatiofT aiwan Research and design of flash 22,638 22,638 2,263,800 49.00 23,210 3,362 1,647 |Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phison Electronics Japan Cc|Japal Sales and service offi 59,50¢ 28,98: 2,00( 100.0¢ 35,18¢ 1,54¢ 1,54¢ |Subsidiar
Global Flash Limited Samoa Investment and trade 665,823 665,823| 21,000,000  100.00 648,954 40,753 40,753 |Subsidiary
Phisontech Electronics Malaysia Design, production and sale of 91,422 91,422 10,000,000 100.00 62,643 (102) (102)|Subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. flash memory controllers and
peripheral system
applications
Epostar Electronics (BVI)  |British Virgin Islandginvestment 133,988 133,988| 10,600,000 37.82 21,234 (105,373 (39,852)Equity-method
Corporation investee
Power Flash (Samoa) LimitefSBamoa Investment and trade 105,440 105,440 3,200,000 100.00 100,381 168 168 [Subsidiary
Everspeed Technology Limit&8amoa Trade of electronic components - - 1,000,000 100.00 143,017 2,669 2,669 |Subsidiary
Regis Investment (Samoa) |Samoa Investment 199,332 - 6,700,000 100.00 203,394 171 171 |Subsidiary
Limited
Lian Xu Dong Investmen{Ostek Corporation Taiwan Manufacture and trade of 9,000 9,000 900,000 100.00 52,223 (1,323 - |Sub-subsidiary
Corporation electronic components
PMS Technology Corporatiofiraiwan Research and design of flash 2,000 2,000 200,000 33.33 17,897 3,840 - |Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phisontech Electronics |Phisontech Electronics Taiw#haiwan Design of ASIC and R&D, 10,000 10,000 1,000,000 100.00 39,814 1,058 - |Sub-subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Corp. manufacture, and sale of
ASIC for IP and technical
support service
Global Flash Limited Core Storage Electronic  |Samoa Investment and trade 576,229 576,229 18,050,000 100.00 598,448 52,982 - |Sub-subsidiary
(Samoa) Limited
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Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2018
Percentage o Net (Loss) Investment
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts|September 30 December 31| Number of Ownersgi Carrying |Income of the (Loss) Incom Note
2018 2017 Shares %) P Amount Investee
Power Flash (Samoa) |Power Flash (HK) Limited Hong Kong Trade of elenimproducts $ 98,754 $ 98,754 3,000,000/ 100.00 $ 94,379 $ 69| $ - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited
Everspeed Technology |Memoryexchange Corporatigaiwan Design and sale of flash 391,986 391,986/ 40,950,000 100.00 7,309 (55) - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited memory related products
Fast Choice Global Limited | British Virgin Islandsade of electronic components 1,482 1,482 50,000 100.00 2,663 (41) - |Sub-subsidiary
Cloud Solution Global LimitefBritish Virgin IslandsTrade of electronic components 186,963 186,963 5,950,440 100.00 11,905 332 - |Sub-subsidiary
Regis Investment (SamogiRealYou Investment Limited| Hong Kong Investment 197,760 - 6,650,000 100.00 201,882 231 - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited

(Concluded)
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED
(In Thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

TABLE 6

Investee Company

Main Businesses and Productg

Total Amount

Investment Flows

Accumulated
Outflow of
Investment

from Taiwan as

of January 1,

2018

Method of
Investment
(Note 1)

of Paid-in
Capital

Outflow

Inflow

Accumulated
Outflow of
Investment

from Taiwan

as of

September 30,

2018

Percentage of
Ownership
(%)

Investment
(Loss) Income
(Note 2)

Carrying
Amount
as of
September 30,
2018

Accumulated
Inward
Remittance of
Earnings as of
September 30,
2018

Phisontech (Shenzhen) Limited

Hefei Core Storage Electronic
Limited

Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technolog
Limited

Hefei Yichao Electronics Technolol
Ltd.

Hefei Xinpeng Technology Co., LtdDesign, R&D, production and sale

Design, R&D, impod axport
of storage devices and
electronics

Design, R&D, production and saje
of integrated circuits, systems
and electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services

WDesign, R&D, production and sale
of electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services

Design, R&D, production and sale
of electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services

of integrated circuits and
electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services

$ 53,096 b $ 53,096

576,780 b 576,780

182,825

185,369 b -

493,570 b -

182,825

$ 53,09

576,78

182,82

Oy

Q00.

100.00

b 100.00

100.00

36.36

$ (11,974)

52,953

224

266

$ 11,570

597,351

181,175

79915

7569

Accumulated Investments in
Mainland China as of
September 30, 2018

Investment Amount Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA

Limit on Investments
(Note 3)

$ 812701
(US$ 25762)

$ 825269
(US$  26,390)

$ 15,672,297
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Note 1: Method of investment:

a.

Indirectly invested in a China-based companguh a third-region company, Regis Investment lediitand its subsidiaries.
b.

Indirectly invested in a China-based compangugh a third-region company, Global Flash Limitaxdd its subsidiaries.
Note 2: The amounts were recognized based on @wedi financial statements.

Note 3: The limit of investments in mainland Chimdyich is based on Regulations Governing the Apglro¥ Investments on Technical Corporation in Maimd China, is 60% of the Group’s net asset valleciwis $26,120,495 x 60% =
$15,672,297.

(Concluded)
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TABLE 7

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH INVESTEE COMPANIES IN  MAINLAND CHINA, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THRO  UGH A THIRD PARTY, AND THEIR PRICES, PAYMENT TERMS, AND
UNREALIZED GAINS OR LOSSES

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ A(E;(;ur;t;er\;ecelvab
Buyer Related Party Relationship Purchase/ % of Y % of Note
Amount 0 Payment Terms Unit Price | Payment Terms | Ending Balance 0
Sale Total Total
Phison Electronics Corp. Hefei Core Storage El@atro |Sub-subsidiary Sale $ 249,141 1 Net 30 days afterthly closing None None $ 16,368 0 -
Limited

Hefei Ruhan Electronic Sub-subsidiary Sale 34,727, 0 Net 30 days afterthty closing None None 34,500 1 -
Technology Limited

Hefei Core Storage Electronig¢iefei Ruhan Electronic Sister company Purchase 36,098 13 Net 30 dégssrabnthly closing  None None 32,843 63 -
Limited Technology Limited
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